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CORPORATE VISION, MISSION & STRATEGY

Vision

® To be a Company that continuously enhances its superior technological competence
amongst the most efficient and lowest cost procedures in the industry;

e Through enhancing quality of life and contributing to have a healthier future, We aim
to deliver sustainable, industry-leading financial performance and earn trust;

e The company aims to produce high quality diversified finished goods at competitive
price and to ensure a safe, melodic and challenging working environment for the
employees.

Mission

® The Company should ensure a secure & rewarding investment to the shareholders
and investors, quality products to its customers, a secure, harmonious and friendly
environment to its employees and be a ethical partner withits stakeholders;

e To be a leader in the market, a world class organization by providing competitive
guality products and superior services to our customers, while learning from their
high standard oriented feedback for our products;

e |Improve on contemporary measures including cost, quality, service, speed of delivery

and mobilization by optimizing the long term returns and growth of the business.

Strategy

® To be a Company that attracts and retains outstanding people by creating a fosters
openness and cultural innovations that promotes individual growth and reward
oriented performances;

® To produce a high quality white crystalline sugar by using of highest international
standards:

e To grow our base business in sugar and build those related activities where there is
opportunity to smooth the impact of sugar price cycles;
To offer an equal and fair growth opportunities to all employees;
Ensure to make investments on sugarcane growers in order to have regular supply of
profitable sugarcane, in addition to establish a high standard corporate sugarcane
farming;

® \We provide care through empathy, fairness, trust and support for community in which
we exist. We always are conscious for the impact of our activities on our surrounded
environment.
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

MNotice is hereby given that an Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the shareholders of Tandlianwala
Sugar Mills Limited (the “Company”) will be held at Marina Event Complex, 333-AA, Off Raiwind Road
Lahore on Saturday, January 25, 2025 at 10:00 a.m. to transact the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:
1) To confirm the minutes of Annual General Meeting of the Company held on January 20, 2024,

2) To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended
September 30, 2024 together with Directors' and Auditors' Reports thereon.

3) To appoint Auditors for the year 2024-2025 and to fix their remuneration. The present Auditors M/s
UHY Hassan Naeem & Co. Chartered Accountants retire and being eligible have offered themselves
for reappointment.

SPECIAL BUSINESS

4) To consider and if thought fit, add two new object clauses in the Memorandum of Association of the
Company, and on other statutory documents, by passing, with or without modification, the following
resolution as a special resolution:

RESOLVED THAT, the following new object clause shall be added in the Memorandum of Association of
the Company

“1(a). To set up and install steel melting furnaces, steel rerolling mills, foundries along with other allied
faciliies and to carry on and conduct the business and manufacture, seller, importer, exporter’s,
dealers, wholesale merchants, retailers, commission agents and intenders of iron/steel products, steel
sheets, ironfsteel and copper ingots, billets steel bars, metal strips and other allied products of a kind:
and to buy, sell and deal in kinds of metal scraps, plates, sheets, ingots, billets and other metal products
and all kind of chemicals, and machinery required for manufacture processing of the same, and any
other lawful business permissible as per laws.”

“1(b). To set up construct, acquire, run, own and manage Paper and Board Mills for the purpose of
manufacturing various kinds of Printing Paper, writing Paper, Poster Paper, Packing Paper, Kraft Paper,
Art Paper News Print Paper etc. Building and Packing Board including Straw Board, Manila Board, Box
Board, Based and converted Board, Mill Board, Particle Board, Fiber Board, Crisp Board, Heat and Sound
Sheet and Insulation Soft Board.

FURTHER RESOLVED THAT, the Memorandum of Association of the Company, be and are hereby
amended to add new object clause 1(a) and 1{b).

FURTHER RESOLVED THAT, the Chief Executive Officer and the Company Secretary of the Company be
and are hereby authorized, either singly or jointly, to sign and execute all forms/documents and take all
necessary steps for addition of object clause.

FURTHER RESOLVED THAT, the aforesaid resolution shall be subject to any amendment, modification,
addition or deletion as may be required and such amendment, modification, addition or deletion shall
not require fresh approval of members.”
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5) To consider and if thought fit, delete the following object clauses of Article of Association of the
Company and on other statutory documents, by passing, with or without madification, the following
resolution as a special resolution:

RESOLVED THAT, the following object clause shall be deleted in the Article of Association of the
Company
“1. "IDBP" mean Industrial Development Bank of Pakistan

“PICIC" means Pakistan Industrial Credit and Investment Corporation.
“ICP” means Investment Corporation of Pakistan.

“NIT" means National Investment Trust.

“ADBP" means Agricultural Development Bank of Pakistan.

87. (C) Notwithstanding anything contained in the Article of Association of the Company during the
currency of a loan advanced by a lending institution specially set-up by the Government or any
other agency will have the right to appoint its nominee on the Board of the Company and such a
nominated Director will not be required to hold any gualification share.

87. (D) “In addition to the elected Directors, The Industrial Development Bank of Pakistan shall be
entitled; during the currency of IDBS's loan(s) to the Company, to appoint one person on the Board
of Directors of the Company and to recall and / or replace such a person from time to time. The
nominee of IDBP on the Board of Directors of the Company may not be holder of share (s) in the
capital of the Company and the Article. No, 76 and other regulations and / or rules pertaining to
the election. Retirement qualification and / or disqualification of the Director shall not apply to
him.

97. (C) Enter into execute a credit agreement with the |IDBP or PICIC or ADBP, NDFC or any other
local or foreign financial institutions for the purposes of raising foreign and or local financing on
such terms and conditions as he may deem fit and towards this and commit, assign and pledge any
or all assets of the Company and such actions on behalf of the Company will be binding on the
Company.

97. (D) Enter into and execute agreements with schedule banks or other financial institutions like
the ICP, State Life Insurance Corporation of Pakistan, NIT, etc. for the purposes of raising local
financing including bridge financing in pursuance of equity under writing agreements and to assign,
pledge or commit any or all assets of the Company for issuance of commitment to third parties by
such banks and institutions.

FURTHER RESOLVED THAT, the Article of Association of the Company, be and are hereby deleted
object clause 1(IDBP, PICIC, ICP, NIT, ADBP) 87. (C), 87. (D), 97. (C} 97. (D).
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FURTHER RESOLVED THAT, the Chief Executive Officer and the Company Secretary of the
Company be and are hereby authorized, either singly or jointly, to sign and execute all
forms/documents and take all necessary steps for deletion of object clause.

FURTHER RESOLVED THAT, the aforesaid resolution shall be subject to any amendment,

modification, addition or deletion as may be required and such amendment, modification, addition
or deletion shall not require fresh approval of members.”

68) To approve by way of special resolution with or without modification the following resolutions in
respect of related party transactions under the provisions of Section 208 of the Companies Act,
2017.

“Resolved That, Associated Companies transactions carried out during the years as disclosed in
Financial Statements for the years ended September 30, 2023 and before be and hereby approved
and confirmed.”

Further Resolved That transactions approved by Board shall be deemed to have been approved
by the shareholders and shall be placed before the sharehalders in the annual general meeting
for their formal approval.

7) To receive, consider and approve the Circulation of Annual Report through QR Code and through
Weblink, in accordance with the requirement of SECP’s 5.R.0 389(1),/2023 dated March 31, 2023
and pass the following resolution with or without modification:

Resolved that, Tandlianwala Sugar Mills Limited (the “Company”) be and is hereby authorized to circulate its
Annual Report including Audited Financial Statements, auditor's Report, Directors Report, Chairman Review
Report and other report contained therein to Members of the Company through QR enabled code and
Weblink.

8) To approve by way of special resolution with or without modification the following resolutions in
respect of the write-off credit balance of Rs. 533,938,733/~ i the different accounts titles and
acount names,

“Resolved That, Credit balances of different accounts write-off before be and hereby approved and
confirmed.”

Further Resolved That transactions approved by the Board shall be deemed to have been approved
by the sharcholders and shall be placed betore the shareholders in the Annual General Meeting for
their formal approval.

ANY OTHER BUSINESS
9) To transact any other business with the permission of the Chair.

Statement as required under section 134(3) of the Companies Act 2017 concerning the special

business of Agenda items 4 to 7 to be considered at the meeting are being sent to the shareholders
of the company with this notice.

By Order of the Board

Lahare Company Secretary
January 04, 2025

e —
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NOTES:

1- Closure of Share Transfer Books:

The share transfer books of the Company will remain closed from January 17, 2025 to January 25, 2025
|both days inclusive). No transfer will be accepted for registration during this period. Transfers received
in order at the share registrar's office of the Company i.e. M/s Corplink (Pvt.) Limited, Wings Arcade, 1-
K, Commercial, Model Town, Lahare, by the close of business on Thursday, January 16, 2025 will be
considered as being in time for the purpose to attend and vote at the meeting.

2- Participation in the AGM via physical presence or through video-conferencing:

The sharehaolders intending to participate in the meeting via video link are hereby requested to share
following information at tsmlho@tsmigroup.com at the earliest but not later than 48 hours before the
time of AGM i.e. before 10:00 a.m. on January 23, 2025:

Name of ENIC No. Folio No./

\ - . .
Shareholder COC Account No. Mobile No. Email Address |

*Shareholders are requested to provide their active mobile number and email address to ensure timely
communication.

The login facility shall remain open from 09:45 am till the end of the meeting on lanuary 25, 2025

3- Appointment of Proxy:

A member entitled to attend and vote at this meeting is entitled to appoint another member as his/ her
proxy to attend and vote for him/her. Proxies in order to be effective must be received at the registered
office of the Company at 66-L, Gulberg-Il, Lahore, not less than 48 hours before the time of holding the
meeting. Proxy form is attached with the notice.

In the case of a corporate entity, the Board of Directors’ resolution/power of attorney with specimen
signature of the nominee shall be produced before the meeting. The individual members or
representatives of corporate members of the Company in CDC must bring original National Identity
Cards or Passport and CDC Account and Participant ID Numbers to prove identity and verification at the
time of the meeting.

4- Postal Ballot/E-Voting

Pursuant to the Companies (Postal Ballot) Regulations, 2018, Members will be allowed to exercise their
right to vote through e-voting or postal ballot, subject to meeting the requirements of Sections 143-145
of the Companies Act, 2017, and applicable clauses of the aforementioned Regulations.

5- Change of Address:
Members are requested to notify any change in their registered addresses immediately.
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6- Deposit of Physical Shares into Central Depositary:

The shareholders having physical shares are requested to open their CDC sub-account with any of the
brokers or investors account directly with CDC to convert their physical shares into book entry form as
soon as possible.

For any query/information, the shareholders may contact the Company and/or the Share Registrar at
the following addresses/contact numbers:

Company’s Registered Office Share Registrar's Office

i/= Tandlianwala Sugar Mills Limited M= Corplink (Pet.) Limited
66-L, Gulberg-l, Lahore. Wings Arcade, 1-K, Commergial,
Ph. Ne. +92-42-35761124 Model Tewn, Lahare,

Ph. Mo, +92-42-35916714

STATEMENT OF MATERIAL FACTS UNDER SECTION 134(3) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2017 IN RESPECT
OF SPECIAL BUSINESS

Items No. 4. To consider and if thought fit, add two new object clauses in the Memorandum of
Association of the Company and on other statutory documents. The addition of these two new object
clauses shall allow setting up & investing in the fourth division of the Company i. e the Steel Mills
division. The steel mills will be composed of 24 tons capacity furnace, 120T high-pressure boiler with a
turbine having a capacity of 25MW and a copper ingot plant. The steel mill will be based on indigenous
bagasse as fuel for the furnace & boiler. The saving in fuel cost shall reduce the cost of production of
steel substantially. The steel mills will produce billets, re-rolling bars & copper ingots

Item No. 5. To consider and if thought fit, delete the object clause of Article of Association of the
Company and on other statutory documents, by passing, with or without modification. These object
clauses in the Article of Association of the Company are to be deleted, since they now stand redundant,
unnecessary and as such are no longer needed.

Item No. 6. Transactions conducted with all related parties have to be approved by the Board of
Directors duly recommended by the Audit Committee on quarterly basis pursuant to Clause 15 of the
listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019,

The Company shall be conducting transactions with its related parties during the year ending
September 30, 2023 and before on an arm’s length basis as per the approved policy with respect to
‘transactions with related parties ‘in the normal course of business. The majority of Directors are
interested in this transaction due to their common directorship in the subsidiary / associated
companies. In order to promote transparent business practices, the shareholders desire to authorize
the Board of Directors to approve transactions with the related parties form time-to-time on case-to-
case basis for the year ending September 30, 2023 and before, which transactions shall be deemed to
be approved by the shareholders.

Item Mo. 7. Dissemination of information regarding Annual Audited Financial Statements to the
shareholders through OR enabled code and weblink.

The Board of Directors in their meeting held on January 03, 2025 has recommended to disseminate the
information regarding Annual Auditors Financial 5tatements to the shareholders through QR enabled
cade and weblink. In order to implement SECP notification with respect to transmission/ Circulation of
information such as annual audited financial statements through QR enabled code and weblink instead
of CO/DVD/USE and will also be provided through e-mail if they desire to receive the same at their e-
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mail addresses. Special resolution is a part of the notice for concurrence of shareholders to adopt the
newly introduced mode of transmission. However, for convenience of shareholder's standard request
form is available on company’s website for those who opt to receive the hard copy of annual audited
financial statements with relevant documents at their registered addresses.

Item No. 8, Write-off the credit balance of Rs. 533,938 F38 the different accounts tidandaccount
Names.

The Board of Directors in their meeting held on September 27, 2024 has recommended write-off the
credit balance outstanding more than the four years.

Interest of Directors:

The Directors are not interested, directly or indirectly, in the above business except to the extent of
their shareholding in company.

Availability of Documents

All material information (including Memorandum and Article of Assaciation of the Company and SECP
notification regarding annuwal accounts) in respect of special business are placed for information of the
shareholders at the registered office of the company and shall be available for inspection from 9:30 a.m.
to 5:30 p.m. on any working day before the date of Annual General Meeting. The Audited Financial
Statement of the company for the year ended September 30, 2024 have been placed at the company’s
website www.tsmlgroup.com.

Tandlianwala Sugar Mills Limited
66-L, Gulberg-l, Lahore.
Tel: +#92-42-35761124, website: www.tsmlgroup.com

BALLOT PAPER FOR VOTING THROUGH POST

For poll at the Annual General Meeting of Tandlianwala Sugar Mills Limited to be held on Saturday, January 25,
2025 at 10:00 a.m. at Marina Event Complex, 333-AA, Off Raiwind Road, Lahore.

Cesignated email address of the Chairman at which the duly filled in ballot paper may be sent:
chairmantsmli@gmail.com

Name of sharehalder/joint shareholders

Registered Address

Folio No. [ CDC Participant / Investor D with sub-account [
No

Mumber of shares held ,
CNIC, NICOR/Passport No. {in case of foreigner) (Copy to
be attached)

Additional Information and enclosures
{In case of representative of body corporate, corporation
and Federal Government.)

MName of Authorized Signatory:
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CMIC, NICOP/Passport No. (In case of foreigner) of
Authorized Signatory - (Copy to be attached)

I/we hereby exercise my/our vote in respect of the following resolutions through postal ballot by conveying
my/our assent or dissent to the following resolution by placing tick {v) mark in the appropriate box below;

Special Resolutions
Agenda No. 4: To consider and if thought fit, add two new object clauses in the Memorandum of
Association of the Company and on other statutory documents, by passing, with or without
maodification, the following resclution as a special resolution:

RESOLVED THAT, the following new object clause shall be added in the Memorandum of
Association of the Company

“1{a). To set up and install steel melting furnaces, steel rerolling mills, foundries along with other
allied facilities and to carry on and conduct the business and manufacture, seller, importer,
exporter's, dealers, wholesale merchants. retailers, commission agents and intenders of iron/steel
products, steel sheets, iron/steel and copper ingots, billets steel bars, metal strips and other allied
products of a kind: and to buy, sell and deal in kinds of metal scraps, plates, sheets, ingots, billets
and other metal products and all kind of chemicals, and machinery required for manufacture
processing of the same, and any other lawful business permissible as per laws.”

“1(b}. To set up construct, acquire, run, own and manage Paper and Board Mills for the purpose of
manufacturing various kinds of Printing Paper, writing Paper, Poster Paper, Packing Paper, Kraft
Paper, Art Paper News Print Paper etc. Building and Packing Board including Straw Board, Manila
Board, Box Board, Based and converted Board, Mill Board, Particle Board, Fiber Board, Crisp
Board, Heat and Sound Sheet and Insulation Soft Board.

FURTHER RESOLVED THAT, the Memorandum of Association of the Company, be and are hereby
amended to add new object clause 1(a) and 1(b).

FURTHER RESOLVED THAT, the Chief Executive Officer and the Company Secretary of the
Company be and are hereby authorized, either singly or jointly, to sign and execute all
forms/documents and take all necessary steps for addition of object clause.

FURTHER RESOLVED THAT, the aforesaid resolution shall be subject to any amendment,
modification, addition or deletion as may be required and such amendment, modification,
addition or deletion shall not require fresh approval of members.”

Agenda No.5: To consider and if thought fit, delete the object clause of Article of Association of
the Company and on other statutory documents, by passing, with or without modification, the
following resolution as a special resolution:

RESOLVED THAT, the following object clause shall be deleted in the Article of Association of the
Company
“1. "IDBP" mean Industrial Development Bank of Pakistan

“PICIC" means Pakistan Industrial Credit and Investment Corporation.
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“ICP" means Investment Corporation of Pakistan.
“NIT" means National Investment Trust.
“ADBP" means Agricultural Development Bank of Pakistan.

87. (C) Notwithstanding anything contained in the Article of Association of the Company during
the currency of a loan advanced by a lending institution specially set-up by the Government or any
other agency will have the right to appoint its nominee an the Board of the Company and such a
nominated Director will not be required to hold any qualification share.

87. (D) "In addition to the elected Directors, The Industrial Development Bank of Pakistan shall be
entitled; during the currency of IDBS's loan(s) to the Company, to appoint one person on the
Board of Directors of the Company and to recall and / or replace such a person from time to time.
The nominee of IDBF on the Board of Directors of the Company may not be holder of share (s) in
the capital of the Company and the Article. No, 76 and other regulations and / or rules pertaining
to the election. Retirement gualification and / or disqualification of the Director shall not apply to
him.

97. (C) Enter into execute a credit agreement with the IDBP or PICIC or ADBEP, NDFC or any other
local or foreign financial institutions for the purposes of raising foreign and or local financing on
such terms and conditions as he may deem fit and towards this and commit, assign and pledge any |
or all assets of the Company and such actions on behalf of the Company will be binding on the
Company.

97. (D) Enter into and execute agreements with schedule banks or other financial institutions like
the ICP, State Life Insurance Corporation of Pakistan, NIT, etc. for the purposes of raising local
financing including bridge financing in pursuance of eguity under writing agreements and to
assign, pledge or commit any or all assets of the Company for issuance of commitment to third
parties by such banks and institutions.

FURTHER RESOLVED THAT, the Article of Association of the Company, be and are hereby deleted
object clause 1{IDBP, PICIC, ICP, NIT, ADBP) B7. (C), 87. (D), 97.(C) 97. (D) .

FURTHER RESOLVED THAT, the Chief Executive Officer and the Company Secretary of the
Company be and are hereby authorized, either singly or jointly, to sign and execute all
forms/documents and take all necessary steps for deletion of object clause.

FURTHER RESOLVED THAT, the aforesaid resolution shall be subject to any amendment,
modification, addition or deletion as may be required and such amendment, modification,
addition or deletion shall not require fresh approval of members.”

Agenda No.6: To approve by way of special resolution with or without modification the following
resolutions in respect of related party transactions under the provisions of Section 208 of the
Companies Act, 2017.

“Resolved That, Associated Companies transactions carried out during the years as disclosed in

Financial Statements for the years ended September 30, 2023 and before be and hereby approved
and confirmed.”
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Further Resolved That transactions approved by Board shall be deemed to have been approved
by the shareholders and shall be placed before the shareholders in the annual general meeting
for their formal approval.

Agenda No.7: To receive, consider and approve the Circulation of Annual Report through QR Code
and through Weblink, in accordance with the requirement of SECP’s 5.R.0 383(1)/2023 dated March 31,
2023 and pass the following resolution with or without modification:

Resolved that, Tandlianwala Sugar Mills Limited (the “Company”) be and is hereby authorized to circulate its
Annual Report including Audited Financial Statements, auditor's Report, Directors Report, Chairman Review

Report and other report contained therein to Members of the Company through QR enabled code and
Weblink.

Agenda No. 8: To approve by way of special resolution with or without modification the following
resolutions in  respect of the write-off the credit balance of Rs. 533,938,733/~ in the different
accounts titles and account names.

“Resolved That, Credit balances of different accounts write-off before be and hereby approved and
confirmed.”

Further Resolved That transactions approved by Board shall be deemed to have been approved
by the shareholders and shall be placed before the shareholders in the annual general meeting
for their formal approval.

Mo. of ordinary I/We assent I/We dissent to
Sr. Mature and Description of shares for to the the Resalutions
Mo. resolutions which votes Resolutions
cast (FOR) (AGAINST)
Special Resolution as per
1 Agenda # 4,5,6,788 (as given
above)

£

b

A el

—

Signature of shareholder(s)

NOTES:

Duly filled postal ballot should be sent to the Chairman of the meeting at Tandlianwala Sugar Mills

Limited, 66-L, Gulberg-1l, Lahore. or through email at chairmantsml@grmail.com

Copy of CNIC, NICOP/Passport No. [In case of foreigner) should be enclosed with the postal ballot form.
Postal ballot forms should reach chairman of the meeting till 5.00 p.m. January 24, 2025.

Any postal ballot received after this date, will not be considered for voting.
Signature on postal ballot should match with signature on CNIC, NICOP/Passport (In case of foreigner).
Incomplete, unsigned, incorrect, defaced, torn, mutilated, over written ballot paper will be rejected.
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TANDLIANWALA SUGAR MILLS LTD.

REVIEW REPORT BY THE CHAIRMAN

“In the name of ALLAH, the most gracious and most merciful”

It gives me immense pleasure to present this report to the Shareholders of M/s. Tandlianwala
Sugar Mills Limited about the overall performance of the Board and the effectiveness of its role in
attaining the company's aims and objectives.

The Company complies with all the requirements set out in the Companies Act, 2017 (“the Act”)
and the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019 ("Regulations™)
concerning the composition, procedures, and meetings of the Board of Directors and its
committees. As required under Regulations, an annual evaluation of the Board of Directors (“the
Board") of the Company is carried out.

The company has implemented a strong governance framework supportive of effective and
prudent management of business matters, which is regarded as instrumental in achieving the
long-term success of the company. During the year, the Board Committees continued to work
with a great measure of proficiency. The Board as a whole has reviewed the Annual Report and
Financial Statements and is pleased to confirm that in its view the report and financial statements,
taken as a whole, are fair, balanced, and understandable.

The Board camies out review its effectiveness and performance each year on a self-assessment basis. The
Board Performance assessment for the year was based on an ewaluation of the integral
components i.e. Strategic Planning, Board Composition, Board Committees, Board Procedures,
Board Interactions, Board and CEQ’s Compensation, Board Information, and Board & CEO's
Effectiveness.

| believe that the strategic direction of the organization for the long term is clear and appropriate.
Further, the process adopted in dewveloping and reviewing the overall corporate strategy and
achievement of the organization's objectives are commendable which are truly reflected by the
current financial results and performance of the organization.

The Board of Directors of the company received agendas and supporting written matenal
including follow-up materials in sufficient time before the Board and its Committee meetings. The
Board meets frequently enough to adequately discharge its responsibilities. The Non-Executive
and Independent Directors are equally involved in important decisions. The Board has effectively
set the tone at the top, by putting in place a transparent and vigorous system of govemance.

| would like to take this opportunity to thank the members of the board of the company,
shareholders, bankers, financial institutions, our valued customers, and suppliers for their support
and assistance and workforce for their hard work, enthusiasm, and contribution made fo the
company in this challenging year of the change. We look forward to the executive and other
employees of the company for their continued support and dedication to getting the same
operations in the future.

Ghazi Khan

Chairman
January 03, 2025
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TANDLIANWALA SUGAR MILLS LTD.

Directors’ Review Report

Dear Shareholders,
“In the name of ALLAH, the most gracious and most merciful”

On behalf of “The Board of Directors” of Tandlianwala Sugar Mills Ltd (TSML), | am pleased to present the
Company's 36th Annual Statutory Report together with the Audited Financial Statements for the year
ended 30th September 2024,

Operating and Financial Highlights:

Sugar production in Pakistan achieved 6.85 million metric tons during the season 2023-24 as compared to
6.72 million metric tons in the corresponding season.

TSML even during this tough season under report, managed to achieve a profit before tax of Rs 1.985
billion.

The minimum support price fixed by the Governments of Punjab and KPK was increased compared to the
last year, which dampened the profitability of the industry.

The sugar prices remained depressed throughout the year owing to abundant sugar available in the
country due to brought forward sugar surplus of last year, as well as an inordinate delay by the government
to timely allow export of surplus sugar.

TSML management put in an extra effort to procure the high-quality sugarcane and also ensured prompt
payments to growers. This created large requirement of liquidity, which the banks have been unable to
provide, The huge requirement of liguidity, coupled with increase in markup rates made our financial cost
jump, substantially.

The financial cost, due to short-term working capital requirements has now become a major cost
component, alongside sugarcane procurement costs and higher salaries at our mill sites

The management took measures to control cost of administration, production, overheads, distribution
and other expenses to achieve profit margins.

The crushing season had to be started around mid of November 2023, as the government intervened and
forced the sugar mills to start crushing, even though the sucrose recovery was low.

The average combined recovery for the season of the company was better as compared to the
corresponding year and we managed to crush high sucrose variety crop. We crushed aggressively in order
to obtain more indigenous molasses for our distillery division, being a more viable aption. Again, this year,
we continued with the methodology to produce ethanol from sources in addition to C molasses. This
contributed very positively towards efficient ethanol production

The year under report was full of economic challenges including rising inflation and huge increase in mark-
up pricing & taxation, which created an adverse impact to the entire industrial sector, including the sugar
industry of the country.
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TANDLIANWALA SUGAR MILLS LTD.

The finance cost of the company ballooned to Rs 3.607 billion compared to previous year Rs 2.459 billion.
This was because of sluggish trend in sugar sales and continued increase in policy rates by the State Bank
of Pakistan.

Allied Division:

The Ethanol Division of the Company continuously contributes every year and with huge exports this year
we remain as one of the largest exporters of ethanol from Pakistan,

Our ENA brand is always well received as a premium product in the international market and appreciably
earn more profits.

In liaison with the Ethanol Division, our Top Gas (CO2) segment also proved to be a true alliance in
company's operations’.

Season 2024-25:

The sugarcane crushing season 2024-25 commenced effective 21st November 2024, The mills have less
crushed sugarcane in comparison to same number of days of last year as the growers are not harvesting
their crop.

Analyzing the crop yield & its recovery, the sugar production for the crushing season 2024-25 is expected
to be the same as for the year under report. The government of Punjab and KPK has not fixed any minimum
sugarcane support price. However, the sugarcane prices are showing an upward trend, as growers are not
selling their crop at sugar mills devised rates. The growers cite different reasons of multiple increase in the
price of input costs, hence a spike in the sugarcane prices is expected during the current season.

The management of the company is very hopeful that the company would increase its production &
revenue targets and will perform much better in the current year in both sugar & ethanol divisions.

The distillery division is expected to perform much better both in terms of production levels as well as
revenue generation of ethanol exports.

Future Outlook with Addition of New Divisions:

The management of TSML shall be adding two new divisions in the Company viz the Steel Mills division &
the Paper & Board division. The steel mills will be composed of 24 tons capacity furnace, 120T high-
pressure boiler with a turbine having a capacity of 25MW. Both the divisions will be based on indigenous
bagasse as fuel for the furnace & boiler. The saving in fuel cost shall reduce the cost of production of steel
& paper| board, substantially. The steel mills will produce billets, re-rolling bars and copper ingots.

In this regard two new object clauses are being added in the Memorandum of Association of the Company
to facilitate setting-up of steel melting furnaces, steel rerolling mills & copper ingot plant, as well as
to setup a Paper and Board Mills.
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Corporate and Financial Reporting Framework:

The Directors are pleased to state that the Company is compliance with the provisions of the Listed
Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019 (CCG) as required by Securities & Exchange
Commission of Pakistan (SECP).

Following are the statements on Corporate and Financial Reporting Framewaork;

The financial statements present fairly the state of affairs of the Company, the results of its
operations, cash flow and changes in equity;

Froper books of accounts of the Company have been maintained;

Accounting policies as stated in the notes to the financial statements have been consistently
applied in preparation of financial statements and accounting estimates are based on reasonable
prudent judgment;

International Financial Reporting Standards, as applicable in Pakistan and the requirements of
Companies Act, 2017 have been followed in preparation of the financial statements;

The system of internal control is sound in design and has been effectively implemented and
monitored;

There are no doubts about the Company’s ability to continue as going concern;

There has been no material departure from the best practices of corporate governance as detailed
in the listing regulations

A statement regarding key financial data for the last six years is annexed to this report;
Information about taxes and levies is given in the notes to the financial statements;

There is no likelihood of any delayed payments or default in respect of all loans availed by the
Company;

* During the year 05 Board meetings were held. The minutes of the meetings were appropriately recorded
and circulated Attendance was as under:

Board Audit Committee
Mame of Directors

Attended Required Attended Required

NOM — EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Ghazi Khan 5 5 5 5
Mr, Tahir Faroog Malik |5 5 5 5
Mrs. Rasheeda Begum 5 5
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Mrs. Mobina Akbar Khan [5 5

M. Humayun Akhtar Khan(s 5 5 5

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

M. Akbar Khan 5 5

Mr. Haroon Khan S 5

Six Years Review at a Glance
The six years review at a glance is annexed.
Pattern of Shareholdings

The pattern of shareholdings as on September 30, 2024 which is required to be disclosed under the
reporting framewaork is annexed herewith in this report,

Audit Committee

The Board has constituted an Audit Committee consisting of three members including Chairman of the
Committee. The Committee regularly meets as per requirement of the code. The Committee assists the
Board in reviewing internal audit manual and internal audit system.

Human Resource Committee

The Board has constituted a Human Resource and Remuneration Committee in compliance with the Code
of Corporate Governance. The Human Resource Committee is performing its duties in line with its terms
of reference as determined by the Board of Directors.

Nomination Committee

The Board has constituted a Nomination Committee in compliance with the Code of Corporate
Governance.

Risk Management Committee

The Board has constituted a Risk Management Committee in compliance with the Code of Corporate
Governance.

Board Meetings
There have been 5 meetings during the year and the attendance of each director is stated as above:
Trading in Shares

Trading in shares by Directors, CEQ, CFO, Company Secretary and their spouses and minor children has
been disclosed in FORM 34 annexed to this annual report.
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Outstanding Statutory Dues

Details of outstanding dues towards minimum tax and those relating to other statutory obligations are set
outin note 16 and 32 respectively.

Dividend
No dividend is being recommended by the Board of Directors for the year ended September 30, 2024,
Staff Retirement Benefits

The company operates an un-funded gratuity scheme for all employees with qualifying service period of
six months.

Auditors

The retiring Auditors, M/s UHY Hassan Nasem & Co, Chartered Accountants, being eligible, offer
themselves for appointment for the Statutory External Audit of the year ending September 30, 2025.

Appreciation

The Board acknowledges the continued dedication and efforts of the employees of the Company.

We also acknowledge the contribution of our growers as they hold key element of our industry and we
thank them for their continued cooperation.

On behalf of Board of Directors

Akbar Khan

(Chief Executive Officer)
January 03, 2025
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TANDLIANWALA SUGAR MILLS LTD.
SIX YEARS REVIEW AT A GLANCE
Figures in "000
024 2023 2022 b1 14| 2020 209
(Rupees)  (Rupees)  (Rupees)  (Rupees)  (Rupees)  (Rupees)
FINANCIAL RESULTS
Sales (Met) 18,311,576 42200087 32299965 27114404 21271885 27205875
Cost of Sales 32,183.454 6617314 28536941 23995409 19430945 23142769
Gross profit 6,128,122 = 5670773 3763024 3118995 1840940 4,153,106
Operating, financial and
other expenses 4862317 3697614  2THA66S 2113859 1977730 2437413
1,265,805 - 1975159 988,359 995,136 (86,790) 1,715,693
Other income 666,230 287,041 69347 87507 97,730 65,485
Met profit before wppf 1,932,035 - 2.262,200 1,057,706 1,082,643 10,940 1,781,178
Workers' profit participation fund 100,016 113,110 69218 49 404 0547 100,979
Net profit before Taxation 1,831,019 Z 2,149,090 988488 1,033,239 10940 1,680,199
Provision for taxation 748,353 (639873)  (470777)  (320993)  (292666)  (234.276)
Net profit after taxation 1,082,666 Z 1,509,217 517,711 712,246 (281.726) 1445923
Cash dividend - - - - - - -
Earning per share (Rs.) 9.20 1282 440 6.05 (239) 1228
Anthorized capital 1,200,000 1,200,000 1,200,000 1,200,000 1,200,000 1,200,000 1,200,000
Paid-up capital 1177 063 1177063 1,177,063 177,063 1177063 1,177,063 1,177,063
Fixed capital expenditures (Net) 14,412,836 14916954  15330,108 15880401 16114373 16,100,857
OPERATING RESULTS
Sugar production - Unit - 1 M.Tons 29203 00,299 07,062 05,118 182 69,115
Sugar production - Unit - 2 M. Tons 147,608 130,516 104 868 21,679 68811 105,529
Sugar production - Unit - 3 M. Tons 95487 112 843 154 683 139,872 119427 80,731
‘h‘ ANNUAL REPORT 2024



FORM 20
THE COMPANIES ACT, 2017
(Section 227(2)(f))
PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING
1.1 Name of the Company [ TANDLIANWALA SUGAR MILLS LIMITED |
2 1. Pattern of holding of the shares held by the shareholders as at | 30-09-2024 |
———Shareholdings——
2.2 No. of Shareholders From To Total Shares Held
174 1 100 4,517
403 101 500 187,375
68 501 1,000 10,667,272
59 1,001 5,000 137,879
7 5,001 10,000 48,154
8 10,001 15,000 105,681
4 15,001 20,000 69,107
1 20,001 25,000 21,500
1 140,001 145,000 144,300
1 550,001 555,000 552 500
2 1,390,001 1,395,000 2,789 689
1 1,395,001 1,400,000 1,395,343
1 1,400,001 1,405,000 1,401,747
1 3,290,001 3,295,000 3,294,155
1 5,455,001 5,460,000 5,459,419
1 7,635,001 7,640,000 7,639,578
1 20,195,001 20,200,000 20,197,535
1 20,250,001 20,255,000 20,253,274
1 21,575,001 21,580,000 21,575,857
1 21,760,001 21,765,000 21,761,418
737 117,706,300
2.3 Categories of shareholders Share held Percentage
2.3.1 Directors, Chief Executive Officer, 99 996,422 84 0542%
and their spouse and minor children
2.3.2 Associated Companies, -— -
undertakings and related
parties. (Parent Company)
2.3.3 Banks Development 182,589 0.1551%
Financial Institutions, Non
Banking Financial Institutions.
2.3.4 Shareholders holding 10% 89,383,463 759377%
or more
2.3.5 General Public
a. Local 17,527,289 14.8907%
2.3.6 Others (to be specified)
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TANDLIANWALA SUGAR MILLS LIMITED

Categories of Shareholding required under Code of Corporate Governance (CCG)

As on September 30, 2024

S. No.
1

=4 R P A ]

S5.No
1

3

——— . 0

Name

MR. AKBAR KHAN

MR. HAROON KHAN

MR. GHAZI KHAN

MRS. RASHEEDA BEGUM

MR. HUMAYUN AKHTAR KHAN

MR. HAMEED ULLAH KHAN PARACHA

NAME

MR. AKBAR KHAN

MR. HAROON KHAN (CDC)
MR. HUMAYUN AKHTAR KHAN

No. of
Sr.No. |[Name Shares Held Percentage
Associated Companies, Undertakings and Related Parties (Name Wise Detail):
Mutual Funds (Name Wise Detail) - -
Directors and their Spouse and Minor Children (Name Wise Detail):
1 MR. AKBAR KHAN 21592481  18.3444%
2 MR. HAROON KHAN 23,167,665  19.6826%
3 MR. GHAZI KHAN 22975300  19.5192%
4 MRS. RASHEEDA BEGUM 21648017  18.3916%
5 MRS. MOBINA AKBAR KHAN 1,000 0.0008%
6 MR. HUMAYUN AKHTAR KHAN 10,611,459 9.0152%
7 MR. TAHIR FAROOQ MALIK 500 0.0004%
Executives: - -
Public Sector Companies & Corporations: - -
Banks, Development Finance Institutions, Non Banking Finance 182,589 0.1551%

Companies, Insurance Companies, Takaful, Modarabas and Pension Funds:

Shareholders holding five percent or more voting intrest in the listed company (Name Wise Detail)

Holding
21,592,481
23,167 665
22,975,300
21,648,017
10,611,459

7,639,578

All trades in the shares of the listed company, carried out by its Directors, Executives and their
spouses and minor children shall also be disclosed:

SALE
10,610,937
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18.3916%
9.0152%
6.4904%

PURCHASE

4,500
10,610,937




1 |

TANDLIANWALA SUGAR MILLS LTD.

Statement of Compliance with Listed Companies
(Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019

Mame of Company: Tandlianwala Sugar Mills Limited

Year Ended: 30 September 2024

The statement is presented in compliance of Listed Companies (Code of Corporate
Governance) Regulations, 2019 (herein referred as "The Regulations™) providing a

framework for corporate governance.

The Company has complied with the requirements of the Regulations in the following
manner:

1. The total number of Directors are seven (07) as per the following:

a)  Male: 05
b)  Female: 02

2. The composition of the Board is as under:
Category Names
Executive Directors:
Mr. Akbar Khan
Mr. Haroon Khan

MNon-Executive Directors:

Male:
Mr. Ghazi Khan
Mr. Tahir Farooq Malik
Mr. Humayun Akhtar Khan
Female:

Mrs. Rasheeda Begum
Mrs. Mobina Akbar Khan

3. The directors have confirmed that none of them is serving as a director on more than
seven listed companies, including this company.

4. The Company has prepared a Code of Conduct and has ensured that appropriate
steps have been taken to  disseminate it throughout the Company along with its
supporting policies and procedures.

5. The Board has developed a vision/mission statement, overall corporate strategy and
significant policies of the company. The Board has ensured that complete record of
particulars of the significant policies along with their date of approval or updating is
maintained by the company.

6. All the powe rs of the Board have been duly exercised and decisions on relevant
matters have been taken by Board / shareholders as empowered by the relevant
provisions of the Act and these Regulations.

7. The meetings of the Board were presided over by the Chairman and, in his absence,
by a Director elected by the Board for this purpose. The Board has complied with the

| | e —
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requirements of Act and the Regulations with respect to frequency, recording and
circulating minutes of meeting of Board;

The Board of Directors has a formal policy and transparent procedures for
remuneration of Directors in accordance with the Act and these Reqgulations;

All the Directors on the Board are well conversant with their responsibilities as
Directors of corporate bodies as the Company had arranged briefing for its Directors
to apprise them of their duties and responsibilities. All the Directors of the Company
are exempt from obtaining certification under Directors’ training programs (DTP) per
criteria i-e 14 years of education and 15 years of experience on the board of a listed
company.

The Board has approved appointment of Chief Financial Officer, Company Secretary
and Head of Internal Audit, including their remuneration and terms and conditions of
employment and complied with relevant requirernents of the Regulations. However no
new appointment was made during the year.

Chief Financial Officer and Chief Executive Officer duly endorsed the financial
statements before approval of the Board.

The Board has formed and audit committee. It comprises of following 03 (Three)
Directors :

Name Designation

Mr. Humayun Akhtar Khan Chairman / Member
Mr.  Ghazi Khan Member

Mr.  Tahir Faroog Malik Member

The Board has formed a Human Resource and Remuneration committee. It
comprises of following 03 (Three) Directors:

Name Designation

Mr. Humayun Akhtar Khan Chairman / Member
Mrs. Rasheeda Begum Member

Mr. Tahir Farooq Malik Member

The Board has not constituted a separate “Nomination committee” and “Risk
Management Committee” as the responsibilities of these committees is being taken
care of at the Board level as when required. Therefore, a need for the separate

formation of these committees does not exist.

The Terms of Reference of the aforesaid committees have been formed, documented
and advised to the committees for compliance.

The frequency of meetings (quarterly / half yearly / yearly) of the commiltees were as
per following:

a) Awudit Committee: 05 meetings held during the year ended on September 30,
2024; and
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b) HR and Remuneration Committee: 01 meeting held during the year ended
on September 30, 2024.

15. The Board has set up an effective internal audit function / or has out sourced the internal
audit function to who are considered suitably qualified and experienced professional
for the purpose and are conversant with the policies and procedures of the Company.

16. The statutory auditors of the Company have confirmed, that they have been given a
satisfactory rating under the quality control review program of the Institute of Chartered
Accountant of Pakistan (“ICAP")and registered with Audit Oversight Board of
Pakistan, that they and all their partners are in compliance with International
Federation of Accountants (IFAC) guidelines on code of ethics as adopted by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan and that they and the partners of the
firm involved in the audit are not a close relative (spouse, parent, dependent and non-
dependent children) of the Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer, Head of

Internal Audit, Company Secretary or Director of the company.

17. The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appointed
to provide other services except in accordance with the Act, these Regulations or any
other regulatory requirement and the auditors have confirmed that they have observed
IFAC guidelines in this regard.

18. We confirm that all requirements of the Regulations 3, 6, 7, 8, 27, 32, 33 and 36 of the
regulations have been complied with except the following:

a) The Company did not have any Independent Director during the year ended 30
September 2024 as per the requirement of clause (1) of
Section 6 of Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations,
2019.

b) None of the members (including Chairman) of the Audit Committee is an
Independent Director as per sub-clause (i) & (ii) of clause 1 of Section 27 of the
Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019.

c) None of the members of the Human Resource & remuneration Committee is
an Independent Director as per of Section 28 (1) & (2) of the Listed Companies
(Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019.

d) The CFO of the Company also holds the position of Company Secretary.

On Behalf of the Board

Ghazi Khan
Lahore: January 03, 2025 CHAIRMAN
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TANDLIANWALA SUGAR MILLS LTD.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REVIEW REPORT
To the members of Tandlianwala Sugar Mills limited

Review Report on the Statement of Compliance contained in Listed Companies (Code of
Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019

We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the Listed Companies (Code
of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019 (the Regulations) prepared by the Board of
Directors of Tandlianwala Sugar Mills Limited (“the Company”) for the year ended
September 30, 2024 in accordance with the requirements of regulation 36 of the Regulations.

The responsibility for compliance with the Regulations is that of the Board of Directors of the
Company. Our responsibility is to review whether the Statement of Compliance reflects the
status of the Company’s compliance with the provisions of the Regulations and report if it
does not and to highlight any non-compliance with the requirements of the Regulations. A
review is limited primarily to inguiries of the Company’s personnel and review of various
documents prepared by the Company to comply with the Regulations.

As a part of our audit of the financial statements we are required to obtain an understanding
of the accounting and internal control systems sufficient to plan the audit and develop an
effective audit approach. We are not required to consider whether the Board of Directors’
statement on internal control covers all risks and controls or to form an opinion on the
effectiveness of such internal controls, the Company’s corporate governance procedures and
risks.

The Regulations require the Company to place before the Audit Committee, and upon
recommendation of the Audit Committee, place before the Board of Directors for their review
and approval, its related party transactions and also ensure compliance with the requirements
of section 208 of the Companies Act, 2017. We are only required and have ensured compliance
of this requirement to the extent of the approval of the related party transactions by the Board
of Directors upon recommendation of the Audit Committee. We have not carried out
procedures to assess and determine the Company’s process for identification of related parties
and that whether the related party transactions were undertaken at arm’s length price or not.

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that the
Statement of Compliance does not appropriately reflect the Company’s compliance, in all
material respects, with the requirements contained in the Regulations as applicable to the
Company for the year ended September 30, 2024.

Further, we highlight below instances of non-compliance with the requirements of the
Regulations as reflected in the paragraph reference where it is stated in the Statement of
Compliance:
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Paragraph reference Description

i) Paragraph 18 (a) At present there is no independent director on the Company’s
Board of Directors as required under the clause (1) of Section 6 of
Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations,
2019.

it) Paragraph 18 (b) Under the sub-clause (1 & i1} of clause 1 of Section 27 of the Listed
Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019, the
Audit Conmmittee shall have at least one independent director who
shall preferably be the chairman of the committee. Since, there is no
Indepenident Director on the Board, this requirement is not
complied with.

iii) Paragraph 18 (c) Under the clause 1 of Section 28 of the Listed Companies (Code of
Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019, the Human Resource
and Remuneration Connmittee shall have at least one independent
director. Since, there is no Independent Director on the Board, this
requirement is not complied with.

iv) Paragraph 18 (d) Under the Section 24 of the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate
Governance) Regulations, 2019, The Chief Financial Officer of the
Company shall not hold the office of company secretary. But the
requirement is not complied with.

Place: Lahore UHY Hassan Naeem & Co.
Date: January 04, 2025 Chartered Accountants
UDIN: CR2024103110YakZ1fTC (Mr. Arslan Ahmed)
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TANDLIANWALA SUGAR MILLS LTD.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
To the members of Tandlianwala Sugar Mills Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the annexed financial statements of Tandlianwala Sugar Mills Limited (the
Company), which comprise the statement of financial position as at September 30, 2024, and
the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the statement of changes in
equity, the statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial
statements, including material accounting policy information and other explanatory
information, and we state that we have obtained all the information and explanations which,

to the best of our knowledge and belief, were necessary for the purposes of the audit.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the statement of financial position, statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows together with the
notes forming part thereof conform with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable
in Pakistan and give the information required by the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017), in
the manner so required and respectively give a true and fair view of the state of the Company's
affairs as at September 30, 2024 and of the profit and other comprehensive income, the changes
in equity and its cash flows for the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as
applicable in Pakistan. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for
Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accounfants as adopted by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of Pakistan (the Code) and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient

and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming

our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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TANDLIANWALA SUGAR MILLS LTD.

Sr. No. | Key audit matters How the matter was addressed in our audit
1 Revenue recognition Qur audit procedures to assess recognition
of sales, amongst others, included the
Refer to the statement of profit or | following:
loss and note 412 and 25 to the
financial statements. * Obtained an understanding of the process
relating to recording of revenue.
The Company generates revenue | e assessed the appropriateness of the
from sale of sugar and its by- Company’s accounting policies for
products to both local and export revenue recognition and compliance of
customers. those policies with applicable accounting
standards;
We identified recognition of | compared, on a sample basis, specific
revenue as a key audit matter revenue transactions recorded just before
because revenue is one of the key and just after the financial year end date
performance indicators of the to determine whether the revenue had
Company and gives rise to an been recognized in the appropriate
inherent risk of misstatement to financial period;
meet expectations or targets. ¢ performed scanning analytics to identify
any manual journal entries relating to
sales during the year which were
considered to be material or met other
specific risk-based criteria for inspecting
underlying documentation;

« performed test of details over a sample of
revenue transactions recorded during the
year with sale orders, sales invoices,
delivery Challan and other relevant
undertaking documents;

» reconciled the sales recorded and sales tax
paid thereto with the amounts reported in
sales tax returns; and

« assessed the adequacy of disclosures in
financial statements with respect to
revenue.

ANNUAL REPORT 2024
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Sr. No.,

Key audit matters

How the matter was addressed in our audit

Borrowings and finance cost

Refer notes 4.16, 8, 9, 12, 13 and 30
to the financial statements.

The Company has obtained a range
of financing facilities from various
financial institutions with varying
terms and tenure against collaterals

of stocks and plant & machinery.

Further, compliance with debt
covenants is a key requirement of
these financing arrangements.

Our audit procedures, amongst others,

included the following;

#+ assessed the internal controls over
recording the terms and conditions of
borrowings from financial institutions,
including their classification as current or
non-current and associated cost;

» obtained confirmations of borrowings as
at September 30, 2024 directly from the
financial institutions;

» re-calculated the mark-up recognized as
expense during the year to assess whether
these were accounted for in accordance
with approved accounting standard as
applicable in Pakistan;

e assessed  whether  installments  of
loans/leases due or loans/leases maturing
within twelve months were classified as
current liabilities; and

+ performed substantive procedures to
verify the mark-up and principal
repayment during the year; and

+ assessed the adequacy of the Company’s
compliance with loan covenants and

disclosures in financial statements.

Existence and valuation of stock-

in-trade

Refer notes 4.7 and 21 to the

financial statements.

The stock-in-trade balances
constitutes 31.56% of total assets of
the Company. The cost of finished
goods is  determined at cost
including of proportions of

production overheads;

Our audit procedures, amongst others,
included the following:

+ assessed the  appropriateness &
consistency of Company's accounting
policy for valuation of stock-in-trade and
compliance of the policy with the
requirements of the prevailing accounting
standards;

* obtained an understanding of internal

controls over valuation of stock-in-trade

e —
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Sr. No.| Key audit matters How the matter was addressed in our audit
and performed test of control on a sample
The Company’s policy is to value basis, to test their operating effectiveness;
stock-in-trade at lower of cost and performed substantive procedures over
net realizable value. The stock-in- purchases and consumptions;
trade valuation involves re-calculated the value of stock-in-trade
management judgement in by allocating the fixed and wvariable
determining  the  appropriate overheads and reviewed the adequacy of
costing basis. costing methodology;
performed cut-off procedures and
Additionally, entity holds its stock- subsequent stock count to validate the
in-trade as a collateral against the completeness and existence of closing
financing on account of which stocl;
there is persistent inherent risk. assessed reasonableness of management's
determination of net realizable value
Thus, on account of the significance (NEV) and the key estimates adopted and
of stock-in-trade, complexity in re- compared, on sample basis, the cost of
calculation and. involyement of stock-in-trade with their respective net
rgigniﬁcant . , manageme?t realizable values (NRV);
judgement/estimation in . .
application  of the costing assessed the adequacy of disclosures in
methodology; we consider this to the financial statements to be in
be a key audit matter. accordance with the applicable
accounting standards.
4 Deferred Tax Our audit procedures, amongst others,
Refer to note 10.2 to the Financial | included the following:
Statements.
obtained computation of current tax and
A deferred tax asset shall be reconciled the amounts with relevant tax
recoghized on the amount of tax correspondence and underlying
losses, if any, along with the accounting records;
requirements of [AS 12. However, re-calculated the deferred tax and
such recognition involves evaluated the same in accordance with the
management judgement regarding Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 and
estimation of future profits of the International Financial Reporting
Company. Standards (IFRS);
obtained the financial projections from
As at September 30, 2024, the management as approved by the Board of
Company estimated that the Directors and reviewed management’s
unused tax losses should not be estimates and assumptions in support of
ANNUAL REPORT 2024
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Sr. No. | Key audit matters How the matter was addressed in our audit

recognized as sufficient taxable the projections for rationality and
profits are not expected against achievability; and

which the Company can wuse |e assessed the adequacy of disclosures in
benefits therefrom. Management is the financial statements to be in
of the view that recognition of accordance  with  the  applicable
deferred tax asset shall be re- accounting standards.

assessed on September 30, 2025.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the annual report for the year ended September 30, 2024, but does not
include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Qwr opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude
that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that

fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in
Pakistan and the requirements of Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and for such internal
control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial

statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends
to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Board of directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with I5As as applicable in
Pakistan will always detect a material misstaternent when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional

judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

» Identify and assess the risks of material misstaternent of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

s Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of

accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.
» Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of

accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Qur
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to
continue as a going concern.

» Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying

transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the board of directors regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant

e —

deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.
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We also provide the board of directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,

and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the board of directors, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law
or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication,

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinion:

a) proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required by the
Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017);

b) the statement of financial position, the statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash
flows together with the notes thereon have been drawn up in conformity with the
Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and are in agreement with the books of account
and returns;

¢) investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the year

were for the purpose of the Company’s business; and

d) no zakat was deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance , 1980 (XVIII
of 1980}

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Mr.

Arslan Ahmed.
Place: Lahore UHY Hassan Naeem & Co.
Date: January 04, 2025 Chartered Accountants

UDIN: AR202410311Enf3RqJ12
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As at September 30, 2024
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES MNate 2 e
Rupees Rupees

SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES

Authorixed share capital

120,000,000 (2023: 120,000,000) Ordinary shares of Rs 10 1,200,000,00:0 1,200,000,000

each

Issued, subscribed and paid-up share capital 5] 1,177 063,000 1,177.0635,000

Share premium & 290,741,640 200,741,640

Un-appropriated profits 8,009 127 420 7495117 955

Loan from sponsors - anseared i 3,635,214,057 3,635,214,057

TOTAL EQUITY 13,712,146,117 12,598,136,652

LIABILITIES

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

Long term finances - secured & - -

Lease liability a 324 738 499 314,238,148

Deferred liabilities 10 1,030,502, 459 880,288,209

Deferred income - Government grant i1 - -

1,355,240,958 1,200,526,357

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Short term borrowings - secared iz 18,469 813,174 8,433 218 407

Current portion of non-carrent Labilities 17 111,044,115 TO1,092 236

Trade and other payables 14 5,535,087,104 6,664,033 363

Mark-up accrued 15 823224 826 359,291,779

Provizsion for faxation 16 1,552,132.097 790,976,460
26,491,301,316 17,008,612,245

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 17

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 41,558,688,391 30,807,275,254

The annexed notes 1 to 44 form an integral part of these financial statements

Chief Financial Officer
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2024 2023
ASSETS Note
Rupees Rupees
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property, plant and equipment 18 14,475,937 865 14,972 450,176
Long term deposits 19 343202922 289,409,122
14,819,140,787 15,261,859,298
CURRENT ASSETS
Stores, spare parts and loose tools 20 2078.260,187 1,735,372 446
Stock-in-trade 21 13,117,054,810 5,131, 402,809
Tradc debts - considered good 22 14,513,451 3,843,118
Advances, deposits, prepayments and other receivables 23 10,228 969497 6,873,082,982
Tax refunds duc from Government 1,041 873,301 791,721,744
Cash and bank balances 24 258,876,358 1,(09,992 857
26,739,547,604 15,545,415,956
TOTAL ASSETS 41,558,688,391 30,807,275,254
Director
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Statement of Profit or Loss
For the year ended September 30, 2024

Cost of sabes

Gross profit
Adlministrative expenscs
Distribution capernscs
Obser ineome

Frofit from opcrations
Fimanoe eost

Othaer expenses

Profit before taxation & Levy
Levy

Profit before taxation
Taxation

Profit aficr taxation

Earnings per share - basic and diluted

The annexed nowes 1 oo 44 form an integral pac of these fimancial sacmenis

Mok

25

7

23

g

it

ir

iz

33

2024 2023
Rupees Rupees
38,311,576,293 42,290,087 513
(32,183,454 385) (36,617,314,126)
6,128,121,908 5,672,773,387
(TT2,183,607) (738,008,233)
{394,536,590) (485,264,526)
G, 230,011 247 (41,015
5,627,631,922 4,736,541,643
(3,607,317,296) (2458,504,826)
(189,295,943) (128,46,521)
1,831,018,683 2,149,090,2%
1,831,018,683 2,149,090,2%
(748,353,175 (639,873,270
1,082,665,508 1,509,217,017
920 12.82
Dhirector




TANDLIANWALA SUGAR MILLS LTD.

Statement of other Comprehensive Income
For the year ended September 30, 2024

2024 2023
Profit after taxation 1,082,665,508 1,509,217,017
Ttems that will mot be reclarefied to profit or lex
Gain/ (loss) on remeasurement of defined benefit lkahiling 012 44,146,419 29,267,035
Related tax impact (12,302,462) (6,414,807)

31,343,957 22,852 278
Total comprehensive income for the year 1,114,009 465 1,532, 069,245
The annexed notes 1 o044 form an integral part of these financial ssatements

Diirecior
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Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended September 30, 2024

Profit before taxation

Adrmstenents for son-cach and ofber fene:

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment
(Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Finance cost

Prowision for staff retirement benefies

Profit on saving accounts

Cirant income

Workers' Profit Participation Fund

Workers" Welfare Fund

{Tacrease) [ decrecre fn carrent aceeie:

Stores, spare parts and loose tools

Stock-in-trade

Advances, deposits, prepayments and other recervables
Trade debts - comssdiered gacd

Tmerease [ (decrease) fm current Goboditses:
Trade and other payahles

Finance cost paid

Staff retirement benefit pad

Taxes pand

Workers' Profit Particrpation Fond pasd

Cash
Capital expenditure

Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment
Long term deposits

Income recerved from hank deposits

Net cash used in investing activitics

Cash

Long term finance paid - saf
Lease liabilities - e
Short term bormowings - sef

inuests

. acliviti

Met cash generated fromf{used in) financing activities

Met increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

The annexed notes 1 to 44 form an integral part of these financial statements
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2024 2023
Maote Rupees Rupees
1,831,018,683 2,149,090,2%
1811 TRE 311,168 790,099,885
1812 - (8,513,804
i 3,607 317,296 2 458,504 826
ot i 189,305,475 149,105,036
29 (118,290,409 (33,395,263)
11 - (B22.248)
142 101,015,731 113,110,016
143 88,280,212 -
4,655,939,473 3,468,088 448
6,486,958,156 5,617,178,744
(342 8R7 741 (452,557 349
(7,985,652,001) 2827983914
(3,355,886,515) (1,074,831 389
(10,670,333) 14,643,154
(11,695,096,590) 1,315,238,330
(1,116,851,974) (850,296,663)
(6,324,990,408) 6,082,120,411
(3,261,820,324) (2,530,340, 8000
(D44, B0NG) {9,987 838)
{250,151,557) (459,538,999
(113,110,016) (26,355,117
(3.626,026,703) ___ (3,056,222,749)
(9,951,017,111) 3,025,897 662
(224,524,954 (309,672,599)]
1812 - 356,300,741
(53,793,800) (134,802,871)
118,290,400 33,395,263
(160,028,385) (54,779,466)
(571,654,543) (ARE 445, 195)
(105,011,227 (153,635 321
10,036,594, 767 (1,563,822 168)
9,359,926997 (2,605,902,684)
(751,116,499) 365,215,512
910,490,702 545,275,190
i4 159,374,203 910,490,702
Diirecior

e —




Iemaang
asp
N3 JaRL) <
)
s R ™~
TTOTILE 50t i >
o sop' [0 190 6996681 SwwawEs [FPUz o
600°F 11T " 668'8 g preuy 38353 10 wed prafan o
- bLIL609'E UF U WI0) rp 03 ] 82
= S9K600'411'L OF9'THLY06T . | s310u paauze 34, o
LEG'EHET: S9p"600' 11T 000'€90°LLT'T L
S ﬁm,. ; £ - Al ___uﬁ Hun_.._.ﬂsﬂﬂ i R
e 805'599'280'1 : LSE'EHETE . § 10 5 Jaue[eg iy
o ool LSEERE IS ) <
a m_”mnm.m_m_h i ; u
M cHOT = ; ._u_u_m_._.._u i i el .uh_ 130 = 707 __“.v.m..r Hun.._.—huau_n N
o $202 ‘05 4 M UHEE speacos 550 M
m 799'9€1'866°71 Te0FITCE0E squiedag papus sead ag Joj 1o
w 690261 : p— h,h S LITS6hL —
£s
< |mma L eredns WLy
= ﬂ_ i
0 [aoursst : gt} £202 ‘0¢ 33quandag v v souepag
4 .
A _.nﬁﬁ_._._... u.N..@“_.mnn m.m NN z
= LI0LIT60ST = : —
= ; papus 1eal 3 £202 '0F 1quuandag
o) 3
< Rmelkadein MERRRII N5
m— 2L
m_ LOF'L90'090'T1 801z eEn'E e § papus Tead g aoj 1gnig
066529 Il I 07 (§50]) 7 IMOOUT TSI [0
(] PA-TTINY
= 96' R
< 000*€90°LLI'T
= e 2
oL siowuodg wos weo — 02 10 3agoIag) 1 8B sour[eg
BaATa8aT
(oL paepadoadde-uny -
poaad areng
ALY i renden
LEERELE aaeg

| wa
ﬁ._m H“H_ ydag papua seal o 304




Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended September 30, 2024

21

24

241

ANNUAL REPORT 2024

I R |

TANDLIANWALA SUGAR MILLS LTD.

Corporate and general informaton
Reporting entity
Tandliamwala Sugar Mills Limited (Tthe Company™) was mcorporated in Pakistan on Movernber (0, 1988 as a Public Limited Company. The
shares of the Company are quoted on Pakistan Stock Bachamgre. The prindpal activity of the Company i produection and sale of white
a}xh.'ﬂ.i'nz .-il.lggr,dln.rl:ﬂ and other relabed allied i‘lr pn:u:'u:l:
The grecgraphical locations and addresses of the Company's business units, imclading production facilities ane as under
Head office and rogstened office @ 66 1, Gulbergr 11, Lahore
Unit | - Kanjwani, Tehsil Tandlianwala, Districe Faisalabad
Unit 11 : Zammand, Miran, Indus Higshoeay, Dastract Dera Tomail Khan
Unit 111 : Rehman Hajra, Shah Jamal Besad, District Mueaffangarh
Basis of preparation
Staterment of compliance
These financial staterments have been prepared in accordance: with the acoounting and  reporting: standards as applicable in Pakistan, The
accounting amd reporting standards applicable in Pakisan comprise of:
International Finandial Reposting Standards (IFRS) iscoed by the Intermational Accountingr Standards Boand (LASH) ax aotified wider the
Companies Act, 217,
Islamic Financial Accoamting: Stanclards (TFAS) ssued by the Institute of Chartered Acoountants of Pakistan as mstifiend under the
Companies Act, 217T; and
Provision of amd directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017
Where prowvisions of and directives issued under the Comparnies Act, 2017 differ from the TFRS or IFPAS, the provison of amd directives issoed
under the Companies Ace, 2007 have been folloeed.

Functivnal and presentation currency
These financial statements are presented in Pakistan Rupees (PRER), which is the Company’s functional currency. All financal mformation
presented in Rupees has been rounded off o the neanest of Bupee, unbess otheroise stated.

Basis of imcasurcinent

These finasecial staternents have been prepared under the historical cost comention unless otheneise stated.

Use of judgements and estimates

The preparation of fmancial stataments in conformity with approved  accountings standands regquires management o make judpements,
extimates and assumptions that affect the applicaton of policies amd reported amounes of assers, Babilities, income and expenses. The estimates
and asseociated asammptions are based on historical experience amd various cther factors that ane believed 1o be neasonable under ciroumstances,
and the: results of which form the basis for making judgement about the carrying vabse of acoets and Babilites that are oot resdily apgarens
from wther souroes. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The extimates and usderlying ssoumptions are reviewed on an ongroings basis. Bevidons o accounting estimates are recognied inthe period in
which estimates are revised i the nevisdon affects oaly that pericad, or in the period of the revision and future persods i the revision affects
both current amd future periods.

The: ancas where assumptions and estimates are sipmificant to the Company finandal statements or where judgement was exercised in the
lP"!]itJI'i!Hl IFF :.Dl:l:n.l'l.‘ll:i'ng PMB | as 'ﬁ:h]]l:l’w:

Empl " e benefits and other obligations

-t

The: Commpany cperates an approved unfunded gratuity scheme covering all permanent workers whao have completed the oinimuom qualifyng:
period of service as defined under the nespective scheme. The caboulation of the benefit requires assumptions o be made of future oubceommes,
the principal cnes bang in respeet of an increase in rermonseration s the discount rate used o convert future cash flows 0 corrent vaboes
The: assumpticas wsed for the plan are determined by an independent actoary on anmoal bases.

Taxation

The Company takes into scoount the prevailing Income Tax Law and the decicions taken by Appellue Authorities. Where, ot the assesment

stayre, the taxation authorities have acdopted a different tax treatment and the Company constders that the mest likely outcome: will be in faver

Provisions and comtingencles

The: Commypany reviews the status of all pendiogs litiprations and claims apaimst the Company. In making 2 jedgement and |/ or estimate relatiog te
F\ﬂbd'li'i')' of wnrboremes, the tanagrerneTt consichers hw'i, stafutory r|.||u| 'r%ulzth:m amd the advice of the 1@] achvisors for the estimated
financial cutcesme and where, based on management’s estimate, o provision is regquired, the same is reconded mthe fmanscial statoments. The
actual outcome of these itigations and claims can affect the carrying ameounts of the labilides recognized ae the statement of financial positon
dlate

Estimated useful lives, residual values and method of depreciation of property, plant and equipment
The: Company revieas the useful Bres amd residual valoes of property, plant amd equipenent on repular basis. Any change in estirmates in future

years might affect the carrying: amounts of the espective ems of property, plant and  equipment with 2 cormespomding. effect on the
l.kl'm&mijmp
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[nventoties

The Company reviews the inventories for possible Impairment on an annual basis. Any change in estimates in future years might affect the

carrying amounts of the respective itemes of inventonies with a corresponding effect on the provision.

[iCLs are based on the difference between the contracteal cash flows dee in acoordance with the contract and all the cash flows thar the

{ompany expects o receive. The shortfall is then discounted at an approximation to the asset's orginal effective interest rate.

The Company has clected to measure loss allowances for trade dehts other than refonds doe from Government of Palastan® using IFRS 9

simphfied approach and has calculated FCLs hased on fetime ECLs. The financial assets due from the (rovernment of Pakistan continoes to

be measured under 1A5-39 doe to the exemption given by the Seouritics and [xchange Commission of Pakistan vide SEOL 985 (T),/2019 dated

(2 September 2019, The Company has established 2 provision matrix that is based on the Company’s histoncal credit loss experience, adjosted

for forwand-looking factors spedific to the debtors and the economic emdironment. When determining whether the omedit dsk of 2 Anancial

asset has increased symificantly since indttal recopnition and when estimating [301Ls, the Company considers reasonable and supportable

infosrmation that is relevant and availahle without undue cost or effort. This indudes both quantitative and qualitative information and analysis,

based on the Company’s historical expenence and informed credit assessment including foreard-looking information.

The maximum perod considered when estimating [2C]Ls is the maxdmom contractual penod over which the Company is exposed to credit nsk.

Loss allowances for iingncial assets messured at smortied cost are deducted from the gross canrying amount of the assets.

The Company reviews the recoverability of its trade debis, deposits, advances and other receivables o assess amount of loss allowances

requined there apainst on an annual basis.

The accounting polices and the methods of computstion adopted in the preparation of these Arancal statements ane same as those applied n

the preparation of the financal statements for the year ended September 3, 2023,

Changes In Accounting Standards, Interpretation And Pronouncemment
31  Swndards, interpeetation and amendments to approved accounting standards which became effective during the year

There werne certzin amendments that became applicable for the Company during the year but are not consdered to be
relevant or did not have any sipnificant effect on the Companys operstions and have, therefore, not been discosed in these
financial statements except that during the year certain amendments to [AS 1 “Presentation of Finandal Statements” have
hecome applicable to the Company which require entities to disclose their matenal accounting pobicy information rather
than their significant accounting polices. These amendments o [AS have been introduced to help entities Improve
accounting policy discloseres so that they provide more useful information to investors and other primary wsers of the
financial statements. These amendments have been incorporated in these financial statements with the prmary impact that
the: material sccounting policy information has been disclosed rather than the sipnificant acooenting polices. Dunng the
year, the Institte of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (ICAF) has withdraen Technical Release 27 “TAS 12, Income Taxes
(Revised 212)" and issued the TAS 12 Application Guidance on Accounting for Minimom Taxes and Final Tanes™ (the
(nndance). Accordingly, in accordance with the Guidance, the Company has chanped its acoounting policy to recopmize
minimum and final taxes as Tevy’ under IAS 37 “Provisions, Contingent Lishiliies and Contingent Assets™ which were
previously being recognized as “Income tax’
The Company has sccounted for the effects of these changes in accounting policy retrospectively under TAS 8 “Accounting
Pobces, Changes in Accounting Dstimates and Frrors™ and the commesponding figures have been restated i these
unconsolidated financial statements. The effects of restatements are as follows:

c in I[mpact uf dnngl: in of n
. g I accounting policy : g I
{Rupecs) (Rupees) (Rupees)
Eileet on statement of profit or loss
Fot the year ciwded Jone 30, 2024
Tax on higher earmings - Sugser Tax (40
Profit before wax 1,831, M8, 683 - 1,831,001 B,683
Taxation {T48,353,175) - (748,353,175)
Profit afier tax 1,082 (65,500 - 1,082 665,508
ANNUAL REPORT 2024
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Faor the year ended Junc 30, 2023
Tax on higher carnings - Super Ta (4407

Profit biefore mx 2 149011296 - 2.149,090,29
Taxation (B3ET3. 2T - {639,873
Profit after tax 151217 M7 - 1509217M7

The rebated changes to the statement of cash flows with respect to the amoent of profit before taxation have boen made as well There is mo
impact on profit after tax as t has been charged on Taxable income basis. The super s has also been included in the income ax following
the guidance provided in the 11 section of 1AS 12 Application Guidance on Accounting for Minimem Taxes and Final Taves®.

Standards, interpretations and amendments to published approved accounting standards that are not yet cffective:

The following Internanonal Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as notfied wunder the Companics Act, 2017 and the amendments and
interpretations thereto will be effective for sccounting periods beginning on or after (1 Janoary 2025

Standards or Interpretation Effcctive date

Lack of exchangeability - Amendmenis to LAS 21 January 1, A125
{lassifscation and measurement of financial instrements - Amendments o IFRS 9 and IFRS T January 1, H126
IFKS 15 - Preseniation and disclosgre in financial statements January 1, A7

he sipnificant accounting pobicies set out below have been consstendy apphied o all the years presenied, unless othersise stared.
Staff retirement benefits
The Company opcrates an on-fonded graveity scheme covering all eligible employess completing the minimum qualifying perod of service as
specified by the scheme. Annoal provision is made on the basis of acrosnal valwation w cover oblipations ender the scheme for all employoes
dligible o gramity benefits respective of the qualifying period. The projocted enit coodit method wsed for the valuation of the scheme s based
on assumptions seated in nooe 10UL
Past-service costs are recopnized immediately in profic and loss account, unless the changes o the plan are conditional on the employees
remaining n service for a specified period of gme (the vestng period). In this case, the past service costs are amontized on a straight-Ene basis
over the vesting perod.
The Company's abligation in respect of the defined benefit plan i caloulated by estimating the amoent of future benehi that employecs have
carned in the current and prior penods, discounting that amount. The calculation of defined benchic abligation s performed annually by a
qualificd sctuary using the projected wnit credit method.
Remeasurement of the defined benefi liability, which comprise acanal pains and losses, is recognized immediately in other comprehensive
income. The Company determines the interest expense on the defined benefir liability for the pesiod by applying the discount rate wsed o
mucasure the defined benefit obligation ar the beginning, of the annuwal period oo the defined benefie liability, aking into account any changes in
the net defined bencfic lability during the period as a reselt of bencfic payments. Interest expense and other expenses related i the defined
benefit plan are recognized in profit and loss account.
Taxation
Income tax expense compriscs curfent and deferred we It is recopnized in profie or loss account cxcept i the extent that it rebates o items
recopniznd directly in other comprehensive income, in which case it is recognized in cguitg.
Current Lax
Provision of corrent tax is based on the taxable income for the year determined in accondance with the prevailing b for meaton of noome.
The charge for corrent tax is calcelated wsing prevailing tax rates or x rates cxpected o apply w the profic for the year if cnacted after aking
into account tax credits, rebates and cxemptions, i any. The darpe for corrent ax aleo incledes adjusmments, where considerned necessary, o
provision for tax made i the previous years arising from asscssments framed dunng the year for such years. Under / over paid amounts of
current tax are reoorded as wx refundable [ payable due from /o the Government.
Deferred tax
Deferrod tax i recogniced wsing balance shecet method, providing for emporary differences between the carrying amounts of asscts and
liahilities for financial reporting purposcs and the amounts wsed for taxation purpases. The amount of deferred e provided is based on the
cxpectod manner of realization or settlement of the carmrying amount of assets and liabilities, vsing the enacted or sehstentvely enacted rates of
taation. In this regard, the cffects on defermed txagon of the portion of income cxpected to be subject w final @y repime 18 adjosted in
accondance with the roguirements of Accoeniing Technical Rebease — 27 of the Institete of Chartered Accountanis of Pakistan
Deferred tax liabilities are recopnized for all meable emporary differences and deferred tax assets are recopnized o the cxient thar it is
probable thar xable profic shall be available against which the deductible temporary differences, unesed tax losses and tax credits can be
Hﬂﬁﬁ:ﬂmmuzndhahhnummucdat&mmm&utmupumﬂ tor apply to the peniod when the asset is realtoed or the Dabilicy
is settled, based on the tx rates that have been enacted or substantvely enacied by the statement of financial postton date.
Dicferred tax is charged or credited i the siatement of profit or loss, except in the case of iems credited or charged to comprchensive mcome
of equity, in which case it is included in other comprehenaive Income of equiry.
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43 ljarah contracts
Leases where a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are setained by the lessor, are classified a5 operating beases. Payments
made under operating leases are charped 0 the profic or loss acooent on a seraighe-line basis over the bease [ ljarah werm unless. another
systematic hasis is represeniative of the tme pateen of the Company's benefie

44 ‘Trade and other payables

1Liabilitics for trade and other payables are carred ar eost which s the fair value of the consideration i be paid in forere for goods and services
received.

4.5 Property, plant and equipment
Properry, plant and cquipment inchede owned, right of wse assets and capital work in progress.
Ononed
Properry, plang and equipment, except frechold land are stated ar eost less accomuobared  depreciation and any identified impairment boss.
Frechold land and capital work in progress are staed a0 cost bess any identficd impairment loss Cost includes diseer cost and  related
overhieads, interesr and borrowing cost ncluding import dutics and non-refundable porchase mxes, afier dedocting trade discounts and rebates
amwl ather costs direcily atribuable o the scquisition or constrecton including copenditores on matesial, Bhboor and overheads directly relating
£ Comstruction, crection and insallagon of operang fod asseis.
Subseguent costs are inchaded in the asset's carrying amount or reoopnized as a separae asset, as appropriate, only when it is profable thar
fumre economic benefis assoctared with the item will flow o the Company and the cost of the iem can be messured reliably. Major rencuals
and improvements are capitaliecd. All other repair and maintenance costs ane charged i the profit or loss acoount during the period i which
they are incurred.
Depreciation is charped on a sysiemaric basis over the useful life of the assets, on the reducing balanee method, which reflecs the paterns in
which the coonomic benefits are consumed by the Company, at the raes specified in o TH1.
Depreciation on additions is darped from the month the asset is available for wse while no depreciagon is dhargped in the month in which the
asset is disposed off. Depreciation metheds, residual values and wsefud lives of asses are reviewed an cach finandal year end, and adjusied if
impact on depreciation is significant.
The management of the Company the seviews carrying amounts of its asseis and cash generating units for possible impairment. 1F such
indication cxists, the carrying amounts of such assets are revicwod o assess whether they are rocorded in cxcess of their recoverable amoone.
Where carrying valees cxcoed the respoctive fecoverable amount, assers e writen down o their fecoverable amounis and the resolting
impairment hosa is soeognied in the profic or loss account. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair valec bess costs woscll and
value in wse. Where an impairment loss is reoognised, the depreciaion charge is adjusied inthe fowre petiods i allocane the asset’s revisod
carrying amount over its estmated wseful life
The gain or loss on disposal or retirement of an asset represented by the difference between the sale procends and the carrying amount of the
asset is recogniecd 35 an income or cxpense in the profit or loss scoount
Right ofwse assets
Assers held under lease arranpements are inidally recorded ar the lower of present valee of minimem lease payments under the lease
agrreements and the fair valee of the leased assers. Depreciagon on keased assets is charped by applying reducing balance method at the raes
used for similar owned assets, so 28 o depreciae dhe asseis over their estimared seful lives in view of cermingy of ownership of asses a0 end
of the lease term.
Capital work-in-progress
Capital work in progress is sted st cost less deniified impaiement loss, if any. Cost includes the cxpenadinares on material, lboor, appropriaie
directly anmibuable overheads and includes borrowing cost in respeet of qualifying asses a8 stated in note 4.16. These costs are mansferned o
operating fixed assers a5 and when the assers are available for their intended vse.

4.6 Stores, spare parts and loose tools
LUsable stores and spare pars are valoed ar lower of weighted averape cost and net realiable valoe, while items considered obsolere ane carred
at nil value liems in transit are valood ar cost comprising invoice valoe ples other directly ansibuable charges paid thereon up-to the balanes
sheet date. Provision is made in the financial staements for obsolewe and show moving: stores, spare and loose wols based on manspement's
catimate a8 a result of changes in wsagre paern and physical forme

4.7  Siock-in-trade
These are valoed ar the lower of the weighted average cost and net realizable value exeepr for sinck in transit, which is valued at cost
comprising invoice valee and relaed expenses incoerred thesenn up o the balanee sheer dane.

Cost is devermined as follows:

Haw matcrial at bower of weighted average cost and ner realizable valoe
Finkshed goods at bower of weiphiod average cost and net realizable value
Iy products net realisable value

Met nealiwable valoe significs the cstimared sclling prce in the ordinary course of business Jess estimated cosis of completion and costs
necessary 10 be incurred in ofder o make a sale.
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48 [IFRS- 9 Financial instruments
All financial assets and financial liabilities are initially recognized when the Company becomes a party to the contractal provisions of the
instruments.
A financial asset (unless it 5 a trade debt without a sipnificant financing component) or financial ltahdliey is intially measored ar fair valoe
plus, for an tem not at FVTPL, transaction costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition or issoe. A trade debt withoot 2
significant financing component is initially measored at the transaction price.
482 Classification and subsequent measurement
Financial asscts
i initia] recopnition, 2 financial asset is classificd a5 measored at Amortieed cost, Fair Valoe Throogh Other Comprehensive Income
(IFVICHCT), Tair Value Through Profit or Loss (FVTPL) and in case of an cquity instrement it is classified as FVOCT or FVTPL
Amortized cost
A financial asset is measured at amortized cost if it mects both of the following conditions and is not desipnated as ot FVTPL:
it is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contracmal cash fows; and
its contraciual terms grve rise on specified dates to cash flows that anre solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding.
These asscts are subseqoently measured at amortized cost using the cffective interest method. The amortized oost @5 redoeced by
impairment kosses. Interest income, forcign exchange pains [/ Iosses and impairment losses are recognized in statement of profit or lss.
Any pain or loss on derecopnition is recopnized in statement of profit or Joss,
Financial asscts measured at amorntized cost comprise of cash and hank balances, long term deposits, trade debts, advance, deposits,
prepayments and other receivables.
Debt instrument - FVOCI
A debt instroment is measured at FVOCT if it meets both of the following conditions and is not desipnated as at FVTPL:
it is held within a business model whose objective is schieved by both collecting contractoal cash flows and selling financial
assets; and
its contracieal terms give rsc on specificd dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal samount outstanding.
These assets are subsequently measured at fair valoe. Interest income cabmbated wsing the effective interest method, foreign exchange
gains and losses and impairment losses are recopnized in statement of profit or loss. Other net gains and Josses are recognized n OCL
O de-recognition, gains and losses accumulated in OCT are reclassified to statement of profit or loss. However, the Company has no
such instrument at the reporting date.
Equity instrument - FVOCI
(On inittal recognition of an equity investment that i not held for trading, the Company may irevocably elect to present subsequent
changes in the investment’s fair valoe in OO This clection is made on an investment-by-investment hasis
These assets are subsequently measwered at fair valoe Dividends are recopnized as income in statement of profit or loss unless the
dividend clearly represents a recovery of part of the cost of the investment. (ther net pains and losses are recognized in (CT and these
imvestments are never reclassified to profit or bss. However, the Company has no such instrument at the reporting date.
Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)
All financial assets not classified and messured at smortized cost or FVWOCT, a5 descnbed above, are measered at FVTPL.
i imittal recognition, the Company may irrevocably designate a financial asset that otherwise meets the requirements to be measured at
amortized cost or at FVOCT 25 at FVTPL if doing so climinates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch that would otheratse anse.
These assets are subsequently measured at fair valoe, Met gains and losses, inchuding any interest or dividend income, are recognized in
staternent of profit or loss. However, the Company has no such instrument at the reporting date.
Financial liabilitics
TFinancial hiahilities are classified and measured at amortized cost or FVIPL. A financial hability is classified as at TVTPL if it is classified
a5 held-for-trading, 1t 15 2 demvative or it 15 desspnated as such on mitial recogriton. Financal babibioes at TVIPLL are messored at far
valse and net pains and losses, including any interest expense, are recognized in statement of prodit or loss. Other financial babilites are
subsequently measured at amortezed cost using the effective interest method, while the interest expense and foreign exchanpe pains and
lnsses are recognized in statement of profitor loss. Any pain or loss on derecopnition is also recopnized in statement of profit or loss,
The Companys linancial hahilities comprise trade and other payables, long term f(inances, liahilities apainst assets subject to finance lease,
short term borrowings and sccrued mark-up
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483 Derccognition
Financial assets
The Company derecopnizes 2 financeal ssset when the contractusl nghts o the cash flows from the financal asset expine, or it transfers
the nights to recetve the contractual cash flows in 2 ranssrtion in which substantially all of the nsks and rewards of ownership of the
financial asset are transferred or in which the Company neither transfers nor retsins substantially all of the fsks and rewands of
ownership and it does pot retain control of the financal sset.
The Company might enter into transactions wherehy it transfers sssets recopnized in its statement of inancil position, but retains either
all or substantally all of the nsks and rewands of the transferred assets. In these cases, the transferned assets are not derecopnized.
Fi sal iahilit
The Company derecognizes a financial hishility when its contractual ohligations are discharged or cancelled, or expire. The Company also
derccnpnizes 2 financial Rahibity when its terms ane modified and the cash fiows of the modified lsbility are substantially different, in
which case a2 new financial lishility hased on the modified terms is recopnized at fair value. On derecognition of 2 finandal hability, the
difference herween the carrying amount extinguished and the consideration paid (including any non-cash assets transferred or hahilites
assumcd) 1s recognized in statement of profit or loss,
4.8.4 Trade debts, deposits and other receivables
Trade debis are stated initially at the fair valee, subsequent to initeal recognition. These are stated at their amortized cost a5 reduced by
prowided for.
The impairment for doubtful accounts & based on the Company’s assessment the collectability of counterparty aocounts. The Company
regularly reviews its trade debis that remain ootstanding past their applicable payment terms and establishes allowance and potential
write-offs by considering facts such as historical expenience, credit quality, age of the acoounts receivable babances and current cconomic
conditions that may affect customer’s ahility to pay.
Financtal asscts and financial Babiliies are offset and the net amoent &= reported in the statement of inancial position only when the Compamy
has 2 begally enforceable night to sct off the recognized amounts and intends to ather settle on a net basis or realize the asset and settle the
hahility stmultancously.
Impairment
Non-Financial assets
The carrying amount of the Companys non-financial assets, other than inventories and deferred wx assets are reviewed at cach reporting date
o determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.
The recoverahbe amount of an asset or cash generating unit is the greater of its value in use and its fair valoe less cost to sell. In assessing value
in use, the esimated future cash fows ane discounted to their present walues using 3 pre-tax discount rare that reflects corrent marker
assessments of the ime value of money and the Asks specific o the asset or cash pencrating unit.
An impairment boss is recopnized if the carrying amount of the assets or its cash penerating enit exceeds its estmated recoversble amoant.
Impairment losses are recopnized in the statement of profit or loss. Impairment losses recopnized in respect of cash penerating units ane
allocated to reduce the carrying amounts of the sssets in a wnit on a2 pro rata basis. Impairment losses recognieed in prior peniods ane assessed
at each reporting date for any indications that the boss has decreased or oo bonger exists. An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a
change in the cstimates used to determine the recovershle amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to that cotent that the asset’s carmyng
amount after the reversal does not exceed the carrying amoant that would have been determined, net of depreciation and amortizabon, if no
(Cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of statement of cash flows comprise cash in hand, running finance and cash at banks.
According to the core prindple of IFRS 15, the Company recognizes revenue to depict the transfer of promised poods and services o
custnmers in 2n amoant that reflects the consideration o which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods and services.
The Company recopnizes revenue in accordance with that core prncple by applying the following steps:
- ldennfy the contrace with a customer;
- ldennfy the performance ohligations in the contract;
- Determine the transaction price;
- Allocate the transaction price to the performance ohligations in the contrace
- Recopnize revenue when the entiry satisfies a performance ohligation.
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Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration recaved or receivable, and represents the amount receivable for goods supplied.
Revenue from the sale of goods is recognieed when the Company satisfies a performance obligation (at 2 point of time) by transferring
promised goods to customer being when the goods are inwoiced and defivered to cstomers. This eriteria of revenue recognition for its Gming
and amount is consistent with the previously adopted accounting standard therefore, the management conchudes that the adoption of TFRS 15
does not have an impact on the tming and amount of the revenue recognition of the Company.

413 Interest income
Interest income is recognized as it sccrues under the effective interest rate method.

414 Contract liabilities

A contract Bability 15 the obligation of the Company to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Company has received
consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the cusiomer. I a customer pays consideration before the Company transfers goods
o services i the customer, 2 eontract liability is recognized when the payment is made or the payment is due (whichever is earlier). Contract
lizhilities are recognized a5 revenue when the Company performs under the contract. It also includes refund liabilies arising out of customers’
right 1o claim amounts from the Company on account of contractuz] delays in delivery of performance obligations and incentives on Larget
achievemenis. The Company’s contract liahilities comprise advances from customers.

415 Foreign corrency transactions
Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded at the rates of exchange prevailing on the dates ol transsctions. Monetary assets and
liahilities denominated in foreign currencies are re-translated inio Pak Rupees at exchange rates prevailing on the statement of financal position
date. All exchange differences are charged to the statement of profit or loss.

416 Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs are recognized s an expense in the period in which these are incurred except o the extent of borrowing costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifymg asset. Such borrowing costs, if any, are capitalized as part of the eost
of the relevant asset.

417 Provisions
Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, it is probable that an
outflow of resources will be required to setile the obligation and a reliable estimate of the amount can be made. Provisions are reviewed at each
statement of financial position date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.

418 Related party transactions
The Company enters into transactions with related parties on an arm'’s length basis except in circumstances where, subject to the approval of
the Board of Directors, it is in the interest of the Company to do so.

419 Dividend
Diividend o Ordlinary sharcholders & recognived as a deduction from aceumulated profit in the statement of changes in equity and a5 2 lability
in the Company’s financial statements in the year in which the dividends are approved by the Board of Directors or the Companys
shareholders as the case may be.
Basic EPS is caleubsted by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company by weighted averape number of
Diluted EPS is calenbaied by adjusting hasic EPS with weighted average number of ordinary shares that would be issued on conversion of all
dilutive potential ordinary shares into ondinary shares and post-tax effect of changes in profit or loss atiributable o ordinary shareholders of
the Company that would result from conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares into ordinary shares.

421 Loan from sponsors
Loan from sponsors is accounted for as per Technical Release 32 "Director’s Loan" ("TR 327) issued by the Institte of Chartered
Accountants of Pakistan ("ICAP"), on 25 January 2016 which provides specific puidance on Director’s loans that are interest free and
repayable at the disesetion of the entity. Loans are aceounted for as per clavse 3.3.1 of TR 32 which states that "A loan fo an entity by the director
which ir agreed bo be poid af the diseretion of the enlily does mod pass the dest of Bability and i fn be recorded as equaty af foce walie. This i mol sabrequently re-
meatred” .
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4.2 Government granis
Government grants rebaning o export support are rocopnized when there is reasonable asserance that entity will comply with the condinons
attached to it and grant will be received.
Operating profit i& the result generated from the conmnuing principal revenoe prodecing actvities of the Company as well a5 other income
refated to operating acovitics. Operating prodic crcludes finance cosis, other cxpensces and income taxes.

424 Scgment reporting
Sepment reporong 15 based on the operanng (business) segments of the Company. An operating segment 15 a component of the Company that
engapes in business actviges from which it may crn revenoes and mcor expenses, including revenues and expenses that relate 1o transacoons
with any of the Company's other componenis. An operating scpmeni’s operating resulis are revicwed regularly by the Chief Execuve i make
derisions about resources i be allocated o the scgment and assess its performance, and for which diserete financial mformation is svaiable
Sepment results that are feported o the Chief Executive indode items directly atnbuotable o 2 sepment as well as those that ane allocated on a
reasonable basis.
The husiness scpments are cngaged in providing products or services which ane subject o nsks and rewands which differ from the nsk and
rewaands of other sepments. Scpments reportod are sugar, cthanol and top gas & others.

224 23
120,000,000 (2025 120,000,000) ordinary shares of R 10 cach 1,200,000, (00 1,200, 000,000
117,706,300 (2023 117,706,300) votng ordmnary shares of Ra. 10 cach fully pad in cash LI77, 063,000 1,177,063, (00

& Sharc premium
This reserve can be wilized by the Company only for te purposes specified in Secoon 81(Z) and 813) of the Companices Act, 2017

7 Loan from sponsors - snsecured
‘This represents mterest froe boan amounting to Rs 3,635 malon (3023 Re 3,635 milbon) obtained from the spansors of the Company and =
repayable at the discretion of the Company.
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Nate 2024 2023
8  Long wrm finances - secuned Rupees Bupecs
Sindlh Mudaraha - Dfmndsding Mashanaba &r | [l 4422412 |
- 4,422 412
Maticwal Bank of Pakistan Sypmdiosled eror fnane £2 A4, 374,087
The Bank of Punjaby - Term ffnanc &¥ 0 O CHY
Pak Chman bivestment Cosmpany Limited  Terw froome &4 G2AST 144
Allid Bank [irmited &5
- 567,232,131
- 571,654,543
Less: Current non-current fiabilities
Cooventional hanks B (367, 232131)
Islansic banks 13 (4422410
Sanctioned  Tenure and basis of principal Mark-up as per
Lirmit {Rs.) repayient Agreeiment ¥
&1 TO00LN0 60 egual instalments pepablear & Momth KIBOR ples Title documents of the asects ane exclusively in the neme of Sindh Modaraba
the: end of mch month begrinming: 350 bps foor the: entire tenure of the facility

Frowens Jamnsary (4, 2019
BZ  ZADOMO000 16 eyl inssalrents payableat 3 Mamth KIBOR phus This loan is secuned by way of first pari sy hypotheration charge swver all

the: end of cach quarter 20K bapes present and future moveable foed sssers and meorgmge over band and builkding
beymning from June 29, 2019, amd any other immewvable property of the Company (Unie L I & 1) for an
Instalmnis wene deforred from amount of Re 3200 million with 25% mergin over the faclity amsount,
Jarmuzry 01, X020 i December respectively

31, 2020, The loan is also secured by ways of assymosnt of all nsurances as oo hoes

payee o asiznee, ben on projec scoounts and personal paanntees of all
Spumsors J Dinectors along with all net worth stasements. The londers have
subwwrdinated the repayment of any debts or fmamnce facilites avaibxd from the
Spmansors and Directors 6l the entire liabilides of the Comgany towards the
symehicate anc nepuikl. This firancios has ooy matunesd during the year dated at

236,024,

a3 SO0000,000 10 equal quarkerdy insalments 3 Month KIBOR phes This han s secaned by way of rnking charge and 1st pari passu change of Rs.
pavable ar the start of cach 250 bps 2000 enillioan ezchy, over all present and fubere corrent amets of the Company

quarter beginming from andd 15t pari passu charge of Rs. 4060 million over all present and future ficed

September 021 assets of Distillery Uit 11 (land, building and Plant & machinery),

rul:mc&vdf nulpummz]gtnnﬂr:wf:ﬂ [ﬁru:hmuflh:ﬁnrpmq.m
financing has been matured duriog the year doted at 4/12/2024.

84 20000000 14 equal nstdments payable at % This subwddized huan s obtzined under the bong term fnancing Facility scheme:
the end of each  guarter prowided by SBP to fAinance mmport of bramd oew machinery. This loan &
bugmning on Apeil 08, 2021 socured by way of pari passu charge over fioed assers hocated a Unit 111 in

Muzaifanzarh incuding lnd buibfiog, plng and machinery of the Company
wmlﬁ'ﬁma@{mmﬁghlh mnﬂﬁtm}arﬂp:nldgmm:.uf
all Directors of the Company. This fimencing has bon matoned dated

BT/ 2024,
a5 00,000,000 8 exqual quarterly instabmenes SBP base rase phesf1 The Cowmpamy bos obtained bormwing under Refinance Scheme for payment
pavable at the start of cach Month KIBOR + 300 of Waynes & Salaries by the Staee Bank of Pakistan (3B at subsidized rane in
trnrh:l'ncg-mﬂngm Hﬂ ﬂlh:ﬂﬂ:mmﬂnqh;ﬂir'ﬂ]mzﬁlﬂrmmt}mhmmu]n
February 11, 2021 diffiorenae: berwoon subsidized e Le, (% KIBOR plus 360 bps per annum

and provailing market rate and same has boen recognized a5 Government
grant in acoondence with TAS 20 “Aoownting for Govermment Granes and
Dischosure of Gowvernment Assistance”™ (see oote 11t these unoonsolidated
Enlﬂ]mh}nﬂislﬂgmﬂinﬂhlkmlm:rf[mrﬁtlrﬁmg
in line with the recgmition of inberest expense the grant is compeasating, The
grant is conditional subject o fulfilment of cortain conditions as defined in the
SBP Befmmmee: Scheme. The kan is securned by way of 1t pari passu change
wver fixed assets including land, building, plant and machinery locaed at Unie
|I|,Iiﬂ11th:.r§n lmlhﬁlﬂh}'mml::dpt:nldgmﬁﬂ]
Dirccturs of the Comnpay.
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2024 023
9 Lease liability Maie Rupecs Rupees

1.casc liability af 435,782,614 03,675,841
Less: Current portion (111,044,115 (159,437,693)
Closing lalance 34,7 314,238 148
91  Opening balance SI3,675,841 242 250 362
Add: Asscts aoquired during the year FTATE000 15,060,500
540,793,841 657,311,162
Less: Payments | sdjusements (105,011,227 (153,635,321}
435,782,614 503,675,841
Less: Carrent portion 13 (111144,11° (189,437 693
Closing bakinee ﬂt‘!ﬁ [

911 The principal payment duc under the lesse apreements appregate i Bs 4358 million (202% Ra 5037 million) and are payable in monthly
installments under vamous spreements, biest by November 2026, The present values of minimum lease payments have been discoanded af
interest rate implicit in the lease, which ranges from 2243% o Z28.49% per anmuem (202% 21.37% w 2849 per annum). All lease apreements
carry renewal opton at the end of lexse period, however, the Company intends to cxercise it opton o purchase the leased assets upon
completion of the respective lease rerms. There are no financial restrictions imposed by bessors and the taxes, nepairs, eplacements and
imsuranee ensts are borne by the lessee.

92 A roconcilistion between the wtal of futore minimom lease payments and their present valoes ar year end is s follows:

2024
Fumre Ei Present
coal for fature B o
lease < minimum lease
payments e paymenis
Patiwles 0 mmesmmeesesceeeee- Bopees - -----------o-
ot hater than onc year 144, 456,078 35,471,963 111, M4,115
Later than one year and not bater than five years 335,241,004 10,472 55 324, T38 440
481,727,082 45,944, 468 435,782 614
2023
Fumre Fi Present
fiiTT Tlai o] e value of fumre
paymcnis I paymenis
Dageles 00000 CEmmssmsiiiiaao s
Mot later than one year 251,504,252 62,066,539 189,437,693
Later than one year and not bater than fve years S, HOA,680 52 A% 532 314,158,148
618,372,912 114,697,071 503,675,341
Nafient fectires of the feates ave af fallws: 224 3
Liscount Exctor (Ya) 2247 -4 Z137T% - ZEAM
Term of lease (years) 3-5 3-5
Sccurity deposits (%) 10-30 10- 30
Nt 2024 2023
10 Deferred liabilitics Rupres Rupees
Sealf retirement benefits - €ty 101 1,050,502 459 86, THE 2
Deferned mxanon iz - -

1,030, 502,459 856,288,209

0.1 Siaff retirement bencfits - Gratadty
The latest actarial valuation of the Company's defined benefie plan was conducted ar Seprember 3, 2024 using Projocied LUnie Credit Method. Detail
of abligation for defined benehie plan is as follows:

2024 023
Nate
Rupees Rupees
Present value of defined benefir obligation o 1,050,502 459 HHO 288 209
Liahility 2s ar 30 Scpeember 1,030,502,459 BE6, 288, 209
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2024 2023
1LL1 Movement in defined benefit obligation Mote Rupees Rupees
Present value of defined henefit ohlipation as an 0 October BEG,ZEE 209 TT6AZRIMEG
{urrent service cost for the year fiLs. 3 B2 62T B T2 386,261
Interest cost for the year T3 TG 67T 625 T6,TI8TTS
Henetits paid during the year {4, BNy (5 SHT EE)
Actuarial {pan) / loss on present valoe of defined benehi ohlipaion LR (44, 14641 (29,267 A135)
Present valoe of defined benefit ohlipanon as ar 30 September L3 502,459 BHG6 ZEE 209
2024 2023
Actuarial (loss)/pan during the year 44, 146419 29,267 035
Charpe 10 other comprehensive income fiLs.3 (44,1 46,41 (29,267 A135)
Lnrecognized actuarial gains - -
3 l’:l:.n.rgc for the year
Statenent of Profit or Loss
{urrent service cost B2 6XT RS0 T 3B6,261
Interest cost for the year 106,677 625 T TIB,T75
Met amount chargeable o profit or kss acoont 189, 305,475 149, 15 056
Actuarial loss/(gain) on defined benefit obligation (44,146.41% (29,267 1135)
145,159 056 119,838,001
2024 2023 2021 2020
Hi il Tnfe .
Present value of defined
et obliputioes 1,030, 502 45% HBEG2RR N TT6AIR MG 657 24K 153 S0 A3 WE2
lizpenence adjustment
arsing on plan hahility (44,146,419 (29267 005) 16,932 735 (3,966, 36T) IO, 1 30, 157
(Caain)/ Lioss
.14 Assumptions used for valuation of defined benefit schemes 2024 2023
IMscount rate used for intdenest oost 16.75% 13.25%
Iscount rate used for year end oblpation 12IKFS 16.75%
!"_tpacl.ﬂd rates of salary increase in future 1 LiNFS 15.75%
It T e S 20000 - 205 S 20000 - 005
E - i Sethack 1 Year Sethack 1 Wear
Withdrawal Rates .ﬂge-ﬂa.md fApe-Based
Retirement age 6} years 6} years

L5 Expected expense for next year
The expecied graiuity expense for the year ending on Sepiember 30, 2025 is estimaied ai Rs. 163.21 millon.

W16 The Plan exposes the Company to actuanal nsks such as:
Salary risks
The risk that the final salary ai ihe tme of cessation of service is greaier than what is assumed. Since the benehi is caloulaied on the final salary
{which will chosely reflect intlanon and cther macroeconomie factors), the benedit amount increases as salary increases.
Mortality / withdrawal risks
‘There is also a protential risk thar the aouwal moralty / withdrawal res are different.

LT Caramuity scheme entitles the members to gratuiy upon resignation, terminaion, early resirement, retrenchment, death and dismissal. Crraiumy is
hased on the last month's hasic salary for each year of service.

WLLE The averape duration of the defined henefit obligation is 5 years.

.19 Sensitivity analysis
llﬂms.ig:iﬁmnl mmlm[ﬁmuﬂtnﬂmmzdﬁrﬁmmnﬁrqmﬁngrh; had fluctuated by !ll]b{uwi'lhaﬂ
other varighles held constant, the mpact on present valoe of the defined benefit obligation as at 30 September 2024 would have been as

foallorars: G it
Impact on present value of defined
I it oblimat
............ H:I?-EEI------------
IMscount rate movement T24 ABDAZT T MM 53
Salary growth rate 795,143 918 T22 Bbuls 20T

Althouph the anabysis does not take account of the full distribution of cash fows expected under the plan, it does provide an approximation of
the sensitivity of the assumptions shoan.
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10.2 Deferred taxation
Deferrod tax labdlity as 21 Seprembser 3, 2024 on axable wnponry differences arising
in fespeoct ol
- Areierated fax defreciakion en speraing foced ausely
- I e avrels - med
Deferred tix asit ag a1 Sepiember 30, 2024 on deductible wemgsorary difleronecs ansing
i Fespeoct ol
- msereed daoe doetses
- il redivesvend bemefiis
- Provirion for Worker's Profi Parifeifatie §amd
- Progirion for Worker's Wafars [

10.21 Movement in deferred tax balances is as follows:

As an 1 Owtober

Recogmizeed in Statcrent of Prodie or Loss:

- Accderated tax deproeciation on opcrating fixed sscis
- Leased assets - wel

- Dhnsend pax losses

- Biadl retircment benefis

- Provision for Wrker's Profil Partidpation Fund

- Provigion for Worker's Wilfane Fund

- Minirmem tax credis

Recogmiceer in Statcment of Other Comprrchensgive Inowne
- Sl retirement benefis

12z

o4 2023
Rupecs Rupecs
2,561,057 427 ZABRNG] ATE
174,793 488 209,521,701
(1,921,636, 204) (2408047693
[@8845713) (@57.023,581)
(29,204562) (32,801,905
(25,601,261) :
(460,473,173)
73,005,549 799,212 358
(35,028,213 37,024,083
A6 A1 487 {700,847 05
(54,624,504) {111,700, 97
3,507,343 (21,805,077
(25,601,261) -
(460.473,173)
(12,802, 462) (B,414,807)
12,802 462 6,414,807

1022 As 3 30 Scplember 2024 deferred s assel smounting 1o Bs. 6086 million (2025: Re 1,222 5 million) on wiused tax bosses and minimom
credit uf's 113 has not been reoognied in these financial saements as sufficion axabde profits ane sol capectod o be probabile agains whic
the Compranry can wic benefits therefrom. Mansgement s of the vicw that recognition of deferfod s asset shall be re-assessad on 3 Scprember

2S5,

11 Deferved inconse - Governibent gant 2024 2023
Mair Rupecs Rupecs
Deferned income - Government grant E¥ c
Oipeming bakance B2 248
Reoopmized during the year -
Cirant amnoetined dusing the yer 29 B2 248
Closing balance - -
Lesse Curtent jaoftbon shawn widi ewrfeinl Habilities
12 Short term borrowings - secared
Imterest rate 024 2023
Banking & Financial Institutions Y Rupces Rupees
Mark-sje hased b g from compentinal banks srured
Cash fineanee 2108 - 26.18 11,655,411,01% 2036,216,252
Runniry: fince T - 2586 70,502,155 90,502,155
Fxpart re-finance[FAPC 3-10/145-19 1,714,500, 00 1, 307, 500,000
18,469,813,174 8,433,218 407

The Company has avaiked short werim bortowing fcilides from various commencial banks under matk-up srrangements having srprepate sanclionesd

limits of Rs. 20,950 million (2025 Rs. 13,775 million). Those fzcilitics are sceured through pledge of stock-in-trade, licn on delstors, charge over the
prresent and future current and fxcd asseis, lien on cxport documenis and persomal pueraniees of the spoisoring Diroctors as well as subsordination of
b froen Dircctors. The owtstanding bosrowing pledeed againss sock-in-trade smount w Rs. 14,50 millon. (2023: R 4,751 million).
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Note 2024 2023
13 Current portion of non-current liabilities Rupees Bupees
Long term finances - Conventioneay o & - 567,232,131
Long term finances - Do & - 4422 412
Lease liahility L 111,044,115 189 457 695
111,044,115 T61,092.2%
Note 2024 2023
14 Trade and other payables Rupees Rupees
Trade and other creditors - seswored 048 343,956 617 614,209
Creditors for capital expenditure - smsered T42 104 488 582 859 281
Adwances from customers - sl 141 1,489,270 486 373,157 088
Retention moncy payahle 11,320,146 11,127,122
Federal Fxcise Duty and Sales “Tax payable 320,558,545 383,290,359
Income "Tax deducted at source 231,759 995 156,902 487
Workers' Profit Participation Fund 142 101,015,731 113,110,016
Workers' Welfare Fund 14.3 R 280,212 -
Accrued liahilities 54791, 49 115,291,276
Orther labilines 1,547 633,19 952 681,435

SSS0N 0. o6
141 This inchudes Bs 15813 million received from ‘Trading Corporation of Pakistan ("1I'CP") against sale of separ. In the year 20089 the
Food Directorate of the Government, in conjunction with the law enforcement agencies lifted and sold TCP sugar stocks, despite
protest from the Company.
This hfting of the sugar stocks by Government consttuted an event of force majenre under clause 12 of terms of tenders and the
tenders would, therefore, be discharped due to frustranon of the contract. Accordingly, the management, based on the lepal opinion, 1s
of the view that the Company after the event of force majenre is not required to make delivery of sugar to TCP and no penalties or
incidental charpes will anse on non-performance of the contract. Further, the Company agreed to settle the remaining amount o TCP
subject to reconclianon of quantty forchly bfted by TCP which to-date 15 pending.

2024 2023
14.2 Workers" Profit Participation Fund Mate Rupees Bupees
Balance as at (1 October 113,110,016 56,355,112
Provision for the year i 101,015,731 113,110,016
Mark-up on Workers' Profit Participation Fund - =
Payments made dunng the year (113,110,016) {h6,355,112)
101,015,731 113,110,016
2024 2023
143 Worker's Welfare Fund Rupees Rupees
Balance as at (1 October - -
Prowision for the year i A% 280 212 £
Payments made dunng the year - -
88,280,212 =
2024 2023
15 Mark-up accroed Rupees Rupees
Mark-sup o barromemgs from aonvemtona banbs
Long term boans - seored - 45712 595
Short term borrowings - saured B3 224 8 313,579,184
823,224 826 350,201,779
Note 2024 2023
16 Provision for taxation Rupecs Rupees
Balance at beginning of the year T U6 460 467 065,454
Add: Provision for the year iz T61, 155,637 T0.97 6,400
1,552,132,097 1,258,041,914
Less: Adjustments - (467 6 5,454)
Balance at the end of the year 1,552.132.097 790,976,460
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17 Contingencies and commitments
171 Contingencies

1711 The Government of Punjab under the powers eonferred through the Punjab Excise Act, 1914 levied a charge of Rs. 2 per
litre on manufactuning of spirit (Fthanol) on 03 July 2012 The mansgement fled Writ Petiions no. 18347/2012 and
33334/ 2014 apainst the ahove levy in the Honourable Lshore High Court ("the Court™). The Court, vide order dated 15
July 206, dismissed the aforementioned Writ Petitions.

Thereafter, the Company filed an Intra Coure Appeal No. 1219/2016, of the same title, agzinst the aforementioned onder
of the Court. This Intra Court Appeal was dismissed vide order dated 10 October 2017 on the technical ground of
maintainahility. The Court stated in the aforementioned order that the remedy of Intra Court Appeal did not lie against
the Crrder dated 15 July 2016, and, therefore, dismissed the appeal. However, an Honoursble Division Bendh of the Court
vide Order dated 100 August 2006, directed the Company along with other petitioners to deposit the excise duty payable
under the impugmed notification with the Deputy Registrar (Judicial), Lshore High Court, and restrained the respondents
from collecting the same from the Company. The same interim order holds the field dll date. Till date the Company has
deposited Rs 291 million with the Deputy Registrar (Judicial), Lahore High Court which is disclosed in note 23 1o the
financial statements.

The Company then filed CPLA No. 4330/2017 against the Order dated 10 October 2017, The Honourable Supreme
Court of Pakistan has set aside the Order dated 10 Ovctober 2007, and remanded the matter back to the Court for decision
on merits vide order dated 20 November 217, However, no date for hearing has been fixed till date apsinst the ahove
nentioned order.

Based on the opinion of the Company's legal counsel, the management is confident of favoursble outeome regarding this
case, hence, nor provision has been recognized in these financial statements.

1712 The kamed DCIR, through an order dated May 4, 2023, directed the recovery of advance tax amounting o Rs
T9026,739/-. Aggrrieved by this order, the taxpayer filed an appeal before CIR[A), which was heard on December 19,
2023, The CIR(A) issued its order on Janwary 18, 2024, confirming the demand. Dissatisfied with the decision, the
taxpayer fbed an appeal before ATIR, which, in its order dated March 20, 2024, upheld the demand. Consequently, the
taxpayer fibed @ reference before the Lahore High Court. This demand is expected to automatically settle upon the filing of
the return for the Tax Year 2024, The Income Tax Reference was preferred by the Company against the Appellate Order
passed by ATIR in ITA No 779/LB/2024, where ATIR dismissed the Company's appeal for Tax Year 2024 and
confirmed the Orders passed by CIR(A) and DCIR, rejecting the estimation of Advance Tax Lishility filed under Section
147(0) of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001, and directing the payment of Rs. 79 026,739/ - for the March Quarter of 2023,
The Income Tax Reference was listed for preliminary hearing on May 30, 2024, where notice was issued to the
department, and recovery proceedings were suspended subject o the furnishing of a bank guarantee for the disputed
amount. The last hearing for this Income Tax Reference was scheduled for October 2, 2024, but was adjourned, with no
further date of hearing communicated w date.

1703 Mark-up on short & long term loans has been disallowed against the local sales and allocated to distillery wnit. Resultantly
loss of the company has been decreased by Rs. 39,731,756, Taxpayer being apprrieved filed an appeal before CIR Appeals.
The same has heen decided in favour of the department. Further, the taxpayer being agprieved has filed Appeal before
ATIR, which was heard on 08-04-2021 and passed order having ITA no. 2491 & 2132/LB/2013 dated 106-2021 by
directing the department to re-assess the case. Re-assessment proceedings were not initiated by the department. The
Company's Management expects favourable outcome due to which no provision has been recorded in these financial
statements.

1704 Tax Credit u/s 65B amounting to Bs. 2,505,506/~ on plant and machinery has been disallowed by the karned DCIR.
Taxpayer being spyrieved filed an appeal before CIR Appeals. The same has decided in favour of the wxpayer. Further,
the department has filed Appeal before ATIR, which was heard on 08-04-2021 and passed order having ITA no. 2491 &
2132/LB/2N 3 dated 1-06-2021 whereby the decision of CIR {A) was upheld by ATIR. Being acprieved with the decision
of ATIR, company filed a writ petition having number WP 68259/2019 and hearing of the same is pending for listing
before Honourable Labore High Court. Management is confident of a favoursble outcome in this regard. The said wor
petition was transfered to the learned division bench, who vide order dated janwary 21, 2020 directed the company to file
mameal income tax return for the tax year 2009, The writ petition was kst fieed for hearing on March 15, 2022; however,
due o non-availshility of the counsel for the respondent depariment, the same was ordered 10 be re-listed for 2 date in
office. No further date of hearing has been enmmunicared ll dare.
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17..5  The Learned DCIR started proceedings u/fs 177 and made additions under various heads amounting to Rs. 664,275,802/~
through order ufs 122(1) dated 12-12-2017. Resultandy loss of the Company has been decreased by the same amount.
The taxpayer filed an appeal before CIR (A) against the said additions which was decided vide order no. 18-A/V dated 09-
02-2021. The same has been decided in the favour of department. Furthermore, the taxpayer being aggrieved has filed
Appeal before ATIR on 07-04-2021. Hearing of the same is still pending, and favourable outeome is expeciod.

1716  The learned DCIR initiated proceedings u/s 11(1)/26(1) of the Sales Tax Act, 1990 whereby he imposed penalty of Rs.
156,660,698/ - u/s 33 on account of late filing of sales tax returns along with default surcharge of Rs. 28,768,046/~ u/s
34(1) vide onder bearing no. CNo. LTO/Enf-16/5T/26(1)/19465 dated 12-05-2022. The RP being aggrieved has filed an
appeal before CIR (A) on 14-06-2022 against the said order. The CIR (A) confirmed the demand ereated by DCIR vide
order no 48A\V dated 28-06-2022. Being agprieved, the company filed an appeal before honourable ATIR. The
honourable ATIR deleted the penalty, while the default surcharges u/s 34 of Rs. 28,768,046/ - is confirmed. The same has
been paid. Subsequently, the depariment filed a reference before the honourable Lahore High Court, which has been
decided in favour of RP

1717 The learned DCIR initiated proceedings u/s 8(1) of the Sales Tax Act, 19%) where he disallowed input tax of Rs.
14,384,754/~ on aceount of claim in violation of section 8 vide order bearing no. CNaLTO/ST/E&C-16/DRRA/2020/-
2021/5273 dated 15-09-2021. The RP filed an appeal before CIR (A) which was heard on 16-02-2022 in which the learned
CIR (A) has set aside the proceeding with the direction that re-assessment of case has to be made vide order bearing no.
09/A/V dated 04-03-2022. The learned DCIR issued reminder notice dated 04.03.2022 in response to which RP duly
replied . But Unfortunately without considering the reply , the learned DCIR issued order u/s 11(2) in which learned
DCIR again disallowed input tax amounting to Rs. 14384 754/~ Being aggrieved with said order RP filed an appeal before
CIR[A). The same has been heard and favourable outcome is expected.

17.1.8  The Learned DCIR issued Show cause notice (SCN) dated 21-05-2021 wherein DCIR has confronted the difference in
sales and bank credits amounting o Rs. 24 806,408 432/ -. The said SCN was challenged in High Court who was granied
stay in [CA No39649,/2021 dated 22-06-2021. However, the learned DCIR issued order which was served on 22-06-2021.
However, IR was not aware of stay issued order in which the addiions made of Rs. 22,897,630,561/- and created
demand of Rs. 6,860,328,513/-. The said demand has been stayed by High Court (HC) vide order dated 04-11-2021 in the
CM no 4/2021. The axpayer filed an appeal before CIR (A) against the said demand in which CIR (A) stated that the
decision of CIR (A) remains reliant on final decision of High court vide order barende no 100000115208904 dated 23-12-
2021. Furthermore; the taxpayer being agerieved has filed Appeal before Appellaie Tribunal Inland Revenue (ATIR)
against the said order of Learned CIR (A) on 31-01-2022 which is pending adjudication. The intra-court appeal stands
withdrawn as per order of the Honourable Lahore High Court dated 19-10-2023The main appeal along-with stay
application before ATIR was heard on 19-12-2023. The stay against demand was granted and main appeal was heard in
which ATIR order dated 24,/01/24 annulled the demand.

1719  The learned DCIR initiated proceedings u/s 33(5) and 33(1) of the Sales Tax Act, 1990 where he imposed penalty of Rs.
1,257,357/~ on account of late filing of sales tax rewrn vide order bearing no.  CNoLTU/ST/E&C-
16/Min/ Tandlianwala /2021 /5053 dated 09-09-2021. The RP filed an appeal before CIR (A) which was heard on 15-10-
2021 in which the learned CIR (A) confirmed the order of DCIR vide order bearing no. 08/A/V dated 04-03-2022. The
RP being aggrieved filed an appeal before honourable ATIR on 01-04-2022, which is pending for heanng The
Management is hopeful for favourable outcome.

17110 The learned DCIR initiated proceedings u/s 8(1) of the sales Tax Act, 1990 where he disallowed input tax of Rs

30,714,393/ on aceount of caim in violation of section 8 along with penalty of Rs 1,535,720/~ u/s 33 vide order bearing
no CNoLTO/Eaf-16/ST/8(2)/18217 dated 20-04-2022 The RP filed an appeal before CIR [A) which was heard on 06-
06-2022 in which the learned CIR (A) has set aside the proceeding with the direction that re-assessment of case has o be
made vide order bearing no 10/ AV dated 10-06-2022.
The learned DCIR finalized the re-assessment proceedings vide onder having reference No. LTO /Unie-27 /ST/8(1)/582
dated 15.06.2023 in which DCIR again disallowed input tax amounting 1o Rs 24,680,164/~ Being apprieved with said
order RP filed an appeal before CIR(A). The CIR (A) made the decision in favour of RP regarding allowance of input tax
claim of Rs. 18,928 876/ apainst the acquisition of Pipes of Iron & Fitings while confirmed the learned DCIR decision
reganding the remaining input tax claim of Rs. 5,751,283/ The hearing of this case is not fixed.
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The learned (IR finalized the proceedings by making addition of Rs 310,704,739 on account of Fxport Rebate and BMR
tax credit impact of the same is Rs 123,703,716/ -. Being aggrieved with the order, the tax payer filed an appeal before CIR
(A). The commissioner (Appeals) vide order dated (05-01-2021 deleted the addiion made by the officer inland revenoe
(OR). The department being agereved with the order of CIR (A) fled an appeal before ATIR but the same has not been
fixed for hearnng, Management is confident of 2 favourable outcome in this regard.

The Company has filed 2 Writ Petidon No. 67781/2022 in the Lahore High Court to challenge the validity of Super Tax
imposed by the FBR under Section 40 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2000 The [lonowrable Couwrt has granted intedim
relief t the Company to file Inoome Tax Return for the Tax Year 2022 excluding the tax under section 40 of the
Ordinance; subject to deposit of post dated cheques of the differential amount liable to be deposited under section 40,
[Towever, it has been directed on the request of the Petitioner that the cheques shall be encashed on the direction of the
Coourt or subject to decision in this and connected petidons. The said interim relief was challenged by the Commissioner
Inland Revenue vide CP 3508-1/2022 before Aupust Supreme Court of Pakistan (SCP). The SCP disposed off the civil
petition, directing the taxpayer to deposit 50% of Super Tax Liahility under protest after adjustment of refunds (if any).
The writ petition was later fixed for heaning before Honourable Labore High Court whom vide its judgement date June
27,0023 allowed the Writ petition partially to the extent that the First Proviso to Division [IB of Part-1 of the First
Schedule to the Ordinance was declared to be disciminatory; hence, ultra-vires to the constitution whereas rest of prayer
ie, impositionlevy of Super tax retrospectively on the doctrine of past & dosed transactions were dismissed. Being
agyrieved with the above order, cross Intra Court Appeal before Honourable Lahore THigh court is hled by both parties
ie. Company and FBR. The learned Division bench of the honowrable Lahore High Couwrt at Labore wvide
Order/Judgment dated June 4, 2024 allowed the Intra Cowrt Appeal fled by the Company on the issue of
imposition,levy of Super Tax retrospectively for the Tax Year-2022 whereas dismissed the Intra Court Appeal filed by the
Department on the issue of stike down the first provision o Division T8 of Part-1 of the First Schedule to the Income
Tax Ordinance, 2001 being ultra-vires to the Constitution.

The learned DCIR initated proceedings u/fs 11{1),/26(1) of the Sales Tax Act, 1990 where he imposed the penaby of Rs.
50,238,011/~ ufs 33 on account of hte filing of sales tax returns along with default surcharpe of Rs 11,537,956/- u/s
34{1) vide order bearing no. ST/14 dated 27-07-2023. The RP being aggrieved has filed an appeal before CIR (A) on 27-
07-2023 against the said order. The CIR (A) confirmed the demand created by the DCIR vide order no 22-A0\V dated 25-
M-2023. Being apgrieved with the order of CIR (A), the RP filed an appeal before the honourable ATIR, which is pending
for adjudication. Based on tax advisor's opinion, relief from penalty is anticipated, while the default surcharge of Rs
11,537,956 is expected to be paid.

The learned DCIR initiated proceedings u/s 11(2) & 11(4A) of the Sales Tax Act, 1990 on account of non payment of
sales tax payable amounting to Rs. 282148/- and sales tax withheld payable amounting to Rs. 4428921/~ and also
imposed penalty and defanlt surcharge u/fs 33(5) & 3 respectively on it. The RP being aggricved with the decision of the
DCIR filed an appeal before CIR(A) which is pending for hearing, the learned CIR (A} annulled the onder of DCIR and
case was decided in taxpayer's favor.

The learned IDMCIR initiated proceedings under Section 8(1) of the Sales Tax Act, 199, dizallowing input tax credit of Rs
7,393,346/~ on cement and Rs. 6,991 408/~ on wire and cable, diting violations of Section 8. This was reflected in order
CNo. LTO/ST/T8C-16/ DRRA,2020/-2021 /5273 dated 1509-2021. The RP filed 2n appeal before the CIR (A}, which
was heard on 16-02-2022. The learned CIR (A) set aside the proceedings with directions for reassessment of the case
through order No. 09/A/V dated 04-03-2022.

Subsequently, the learned DCIR issued a reminder notice dated (4-03-2022, to which the RP responded via letter Mo
ST/2022-2023/125 dated 02-11-2022. vwever, without considering the RP% response, the learned DCIR issued an
order under Section 11(2), again disallowing input tax credit totalling Bs 14,384,754 /- Agerieved by this order, the RP
filed an appeal before the CIR (A), who confirmed the demand created by the DCITR through order Mo 15/A dated 13-10-
2023. The RP is likely to pay Rs 7393346/- rclated to the disallowance of input tax credit on cement. For the
disallowance concerning wire and cable of Rs. 6,991,408, the RP has filed an appeal before the ATIR, which is yet to be
fixed for hearng,

The learned IXCIR initiated proceedings under Section 8(1) of the Sales Tax Act, 1990, disallowing input tax credit as
follows: Re 2,759,824 on account of copper wire and cable, R 1,886,019 on clbow and flanges, Rs. 1,510,618 on paint,
Rs 1,083,940 on iron and steel artidles, and Rs. 903,060 on copper wire and cable, dting violations of Section 8. This
action was formalized in order C Mo, LTO/ST/Unit-27/DRRA /97 dated 28-11-2023.

Aggrieved by the order, the RP fled an appeal before the CIR (A), who, through an order dated 19-02-2024, deleted an
amount of Rs 2115999 but upheld a demand of Rs 6,334462. The RP is likely to pay Rs. 2,718,678 related to the
disallowance of input tax credit on copper wine and cable and paint. For the remaining disallowed input tax credits, the RP
filed an appeal before the ATIR on 13-05-2024, which is yet to be fixed for hearing
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17.1.17  'The aforesaid Income ‘Tax Reference was preferred by the Commussioner Inland Revenue, Zone-V, 10}, Lahore against
the Appellate Order dated Jannary 24, 2024, passed by the Learned Appellate ‘T'nbunal Inland Revenue, Lahore Bench,
Lahore (ATTR) in I'TA NaS29/LB/ 2022, The ATIR allowed appeal filed by the Company’s appeal for Tax Year-2015 on
lepal grounds that the Company is not required to maintain the record/books of accounts beyond the period of six years
after the end of the tax year to which they relate. The said Income Tax Reference was listed for heanng on June 26, 2024;
however, due to non-availability of the Learned Division Bench, the same was re-listed for a date in office. No further
hearing date has been intimated all date

17118 The Income Tax Affairs for the Tax Year-2006 were selected for audit w/s 177(1) of the Ordinance by the concemned
Commissioner Inland Revenue without assigming any cogent reasons/grounds and irrepubarities germinating from the
records of the Company. The very selection of case for audit of Income Tax Affairs for the Tax Year-2016 and all
subsequent proceedings initiated thereafter challengred in the Constitutional Jurisdiction of the honourable Lahore High
Court at Lahore vide Writ Petition # 70459/ 2021, The said Wit Petition was listed for heating on Movember 12, 2021,
before Mr. Justice Shahid Jamil Khan. The Learned Single Judge after hearing the prelimirary arpuments of the parties,
was pleased to issue Notices to the Respondent Department with the direction that no final order be passed against the
Company till the next date of hearing, The writ petition was last fixed for hearing on April 16, 2024, After preliminary
arguments, same were ordered to re-listed for 2 date in office. No further date of hearing has been communicated il date

17.1.19  The Additional Commissioner Inland Revenue, Audit-11, LTC), Labore initiated proceedings under the garb of Section
12209 read with Sections 122(5A) and 111{1)(2) and (&) of the Ordinanee vide Notices (issued online) dated June 09, 2021
for the Tax Year - 2015 The said Notces were also challenged in the Constitutional Jurisdiction of the honourable
Lahore High Court at Lahore vide Writ Petition # 40859/2021. The said Writ Petition was listed for hearing on June 2021
before the Learned Single Judge of Mr Justice Jawad Hassan. The Learned Single Judge in Chamber, after hearing the
preliminary arpuments of the parties, was pleased w direct the Respondents tw not take any coercive measures ull the next
date of hearing, The said Writ Petition was kst fixed for heanng on June 08, 2022; however, due to non-availability of the
Learned Sln.g{cjwj{qc at p‘ﬂn:lpﬂl Seat, the same was ordered to be re-listed for a date in office. No date of hearing has
been communicated 4l date.

17.1.20 The Dcputy Commuissioner Inland Revenoe, Enforcement & Collection Unit-16, Enforcement Zone, LT0), Lahore issued
Motice ufs 176(1) of the Ordinance dated Avguast 25, 2021 10 call information which is general in nature in respect of all
buyers to whom sales (of any kind or goods) were made during the Financial Years e October-2006 to September-2017;
Ocwober-2017 w September-2018; Ocober-2I08 o Seprember-201% and October-2019 w0 September-2020° withour
idemifying any reason/ground for calling such informarion/deils. ‘The Company through Authorized  Representative
vide lerter dared August 30, 2021 raised various objections with regard 1w assumprion of jurisdicdon ufs 176 of the
Ordinance; calling of numerows details without any identification for muliple Financial Years and also moved a query
before the DCIR so as w0 confirm the basis of issuance of such Notice. The DCIR, on September 02, 2021, without
considering the essence of reply so filed by the Company apain issued Notice w/s 176(1) of the Ordinance along with
Show Cause Notice ufs 182(2) so as to impose penalty for the alleged non-compliance to the Notice issued u/s 176(1) of
the Ordinanee. The said Notices were challenged in the Constitutional Junisdiction of the honourable Lahore High Court
at Lahore vide Wit Petition # 527T99/2021. The said Writ Petition was listed for heating on September (6, 2021 before
M. Justice Shahid Jamil Khan. The Learned Single judge after hearing the preliminary arppuments of the parties, was
pleased to issue notices to the Respondent Department with the direction that no final order be passed against the
Company till the next date of hearing. The said Writ Petition was separated from the bunch of audit cases on Oectober 24,
2023 and was listed for hearing on April 22, 2024 hefore M. Justice Muzamil Akhtar Shabir; however, due to non-
availzhility of the Learned Single Bench, the same was re-listed for 2 date in office. No further date of hearing has heen
intirmated tll date.

17121 The aforesaid Writ Petition was filed against the dental of Tax Credit u/s 658(1) of the Ordinance for the Tax Year - 2020
on Non-Fyuity Investment in Plant and Machinery in terms of amendment made in cut off date as provided in Section
63B(2) of the Ordinance, even to investments in Plant and Machinery that already stood purchased and installed on or
before June 30, 20019, The said Weit Petition was fixsed for heating before the Learned Division Bench on December 28,
2020, On the said date pre-admission Notice was issued to the department for filing of report and para-wise comments
with the direction to extend the date of filing of Income Tax Return for the Year - 2020 ull 31-01-2021, if the Petitioner
approaches the concerned Commissioner Inland Revenue through an application. The Wit Petition was last fixed for
hearing on March 15, 2022; however, non-availability of the counsel for the respondent department, the same was ordered
to be relisted for 2 date in office. No further date of hearng has been communicated tll date
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17.1.22  Commission of Ingury was constituied by the Federal Government, through the Modification on March 16, 202000/s 3 of
the Pakistan Commission of Inguiry Act, 20017 (Act 2017} to "probe increase in sogar pces”™. On the basis of the report
submitted by the Commission of Inguiry; Income Tax [/ Sales Tax Affaies of all sagar mills incleding the Company for the
Tax Years - 217; 2018 & A9 and its corresponding Tax Periods (October-2015 to September-2018) were selected for
andit u/s 177(1) of the Ordinance and u/s 25 of the Sales Tax Act, 19940 (Act) respectively without assipning any cogent
reasons |/ proumds and irrepolaritics germinating from the records of the Company. The very sdection of case for audit of
the Income “Tax Affairs for the Tax Years-2017; 2008 & 2019 and Sales Tax Affairs for the Tax Periods October-2015
September-2018 and all subsequent procecdings initiated thereafter were challenged in the Constitutional Junsdiction of
the honourable Lahore High Court, Lahore vide Wit Petiion Mos. 6G2342,/2000 and 625344/ 2020, Court. The said Wit
Petitions were listed for heanng on December 07, 2020 before the Learned Division Bench of Mr. Justice Shahid Kanm
and Mr. Justice Muhammad Sajid Mehmood Sethi. ‘The Leamned Division Bench, after hearing the preliminary arpuments
of the partics, was pleased to issue Nonce to the respondent department with the dircction that no final order be passed
against the Company tll the next date of heanng (hoth in Income Tax and Sales Tax Audit). The said Wit petition were
last fixed for heanng on Apnl 16, 224, After preliminary arpuments, the same were ordered to be re-listed for a date in
office. Mo further date of heanng has been commpmicated oll date. It 15 pertinent to state here that Wt Peotions /1CAs
filed on identical facts/issues have already been decided by the Learned Division Bench of the honourable Lahore High
Court, Lahore vide Judgment dated Apnl 27, 2022 wherchy Income Tax and Sales Tax andit proceedings initiated on the
basis of dircctives issued by the FBR are declared to be without lwful authority and of no legal effect. In owr view, the
afreresaid Wit Petitions are likely to be disposed off in light of the said Jodgment as and when listed for hearing,

17.2 Commitments

1721  Commitments in respect of imports contracted but not incorred at year end amounted to approximately Ba. Wil (2025: R=
).

17.22  The Company has given a bank poarantee with 100% cash marpin of Ka 2 milion (2023: Rs. 2 million) to the Fxcse and
Taxation Department for the export of Ethanol.

ANNUAL REPORT 2024




TANDLIANWALA SUGAR MILLS LTD.

BOETIFTL OGFTVTELS D FILTIESHL TTE56° 6L FEE96RRAET WTEIPRT 256 E06 E0LET
T8L'STS BE0'T POLIOEE  (hLT'0OM' L) THpeS'EL LHPTO0 0 CHESEYRLET  (OD'oRvssD)  o00'RII‘LE B9 255"
L0 p4'0Ls R'es e eL2'o' L) Dhe'dartee GLESES R £ |abeesese'l nneisaeat , BOEET RS LG pUe ]
PIF$9E'TY Al - 1L 1T 0F | sebl's . ORI BEF 9Tk SRR
TR TRy
BTUERET  SLETEORET'S  RiT'OSHH i SLAGRRILES OIS 0o0e'ser 1 A i
ST 00 6E RRTRLLE QIE9H0s 8Lu'1g6'T 0 EISH'Y L8 OTH LS wesdmbs Goeoge]
LEsos fe's1s’ 9159 TheTEE] 00 GEGERIT : BEGERIT SUOTIRINIELS? PUFE SIGHY
LTSS LRI f6TI5E 826's6L'0t S 144115 31 BLIENY S 37,
Ala'sa0'L LT LBI%E Wz SEL'CH'YE 0L calorick TR s ﬂ._"_EE
T e R A paeiroade pat cogepagy
ob0'seL'seT BBl lgees THESI0'ES) OF SO0’ LR T T S [ F AT yozdmbs reamsers
PIEBGRGE Rl Inr'ees's BER'CHE'SY 0 st | REF 1SS 801 wswdinba so5)0)
LbT'LsE'TE GLHEIE0T 56657 {96197 0 st o00'ss'l AN SR,
E9'765'T DT 605182 18eks'y 0 DRTELL . BOT'LEL SUOLETHIC BIGE],
IhELEL'e BTN ET 588 S kL 0L LeET EREE) LT shunzy paw emng
seo'sio'zoet  SeETOMIIL il BROTIRDoE BLEOEL'EEH'D € CECWRUWELl  000megse! RUETET  RBITERS L) s pue g
T T S N T 898088 BECIsIE £ LOve0s'isTe : (RE'EE JifgoeRr’s pow uo spece por Sumimyg
[T T 2 T : - P : A T48 114 pur]
pengy
eadmg LT gaadny
.Eﬂ:_ i b pmgeoundss  svmsmlpy é&ﬂ&i iy gry  FEBqundy sy sﬂ,__s.__ﬁ_.ma £
e 0 e 8y [siapsues] joadg OPOTNEY g 1 ¥ fsmpsue], fropppy  “OROK Y
NOILVIODAHdAQ LS0D2
[50 wasse pay Bupmadg g
GLE0SHL YT SORLER'SLEML
Issah'ss L6001 T ssafoud-v-yeoim tdey)
QEUBSEDIEST  SO0YER'TINYI 18 sassr pany Smmad )
saadny saadny LUN wiusdinba pue ued Yhadorg 1
74 b0

ANNUAL REPORT 2024




=
|
(=]
AT T T N
Larzscal RO LPETE a2 B RSPy _nm
BRELPETLL EZ0CIEEL L4 BaE 301607 o)
o
sasding saadiny N imeia) Fe peteaale taaq sey mad sap o) aBzee nopepaeadap sy ppet L
czie b0t .
<
. - . (sc0'zsr'og) » : : {Z10'seTsLE) ; -
m OE9'PSEUIETE TETS6'RLS 488'660°064 TIEE0E L0 266'906'S0L'EE 4 BOC'EELYTL  SOSLIMUSE'ET =z
= =
o 8t B6L'LET T LrrTen'ore (br'sr ey 0E0'sLz 04 LLB'GLa'Tzr eREpOTLEs'T  (ooo'ers‘zez) S5L'HLH'PHE O FE6 Fre'T <
= L BLESEY H [Ze e'es) R ] CHRTRE L S T food'ooneag) GE6'LIE LRE PLISLGEZS daaupras pur g
- Ga 40N EE ILp'ege's zeasy's) LOLTERT STI'ELOTL (A R inoa'srs'l DOR'I95'LE aEatana‘st LS
w TG Y
{ge0'zerig) (ZL0'eEThLe)
o ZH8'SE L GRY'ET SLE'GHR"BLE'S AT SER'FIEEL FFo'LHE 500", Les'erytann'sT 000 £r4'262 Pho'pEhgES STR"UH'TIS'TE
__...h BFL'06°EE BLI'TEG'ED - #05'30'E wITTE (R - BIL'EH'G1 PR wadmbs Diceaogy]
O LE'TED TRETEg LI 0178 oF AEEERIT _ fEGER'T SUCTIMEGE PUT STy
— O61'606'S fZaeaLl SE'y CLE'GEE ] o Ayt ALLEnL's S 3,
s A N_ =1 i 1 v.m__ ;e H ] i d i _u_.uu...ﬂn_mE_
< oen'eet SE1ERHE pRLGHEL GLE'SALTE oF sursegor SLL0eT'e i i A,
erd ShL'FOE ERT TFEGI0ES] ZobHREE] RETETSEL oL oeceLsvEE . RS LE T 6 6 S B0 nsdmba g
< ey Lss ek BERERGED BEL'GES' A iat 0 BEFIEEED - B8R sEInLsl srsazdmba a1550)
W (Zh6 5o LaEEsEE - L6EEE . (Geg'izg's) ) g eze"s) -
= IF5'shE'TS [9ETLHTIT TEE e LERROTFL [§LSTerT 02 IORRLE'ETE DO'Ers's BLR'IIO'T TEER'ElE SRR
m £R0'FI8'T CIRATE . BFL0E ee'iEd'y ol weTsLs ) BED'TS ATTEL FIORHRSY VoL
o TZ0%0EE"s B LS PR #2058 ) SN O TH 4 . L0l0n OIs'sn'er S Pt senayuan,]
(] LT R (BLeseeD) TR . TEes 1 Ig' L8] - (EEa' 16 T LE)
=z LML ISVDEC'tIEY Tl CLA'TGERHS BFIEP TR € GMTVSEELL C00'D0D'eEE EoEoL FLELEE T Az e
<L 699500 696 REE'S1EE1ET : SL6'9LT01 EFRERLLIT € LIt i POS'ILE'LE EOFSOIIST’E g wo sek pu Bupng
- EFr'ETL'LE - ERET LT . e ETEL pueT
i)
gaadonyg 1 paadny
saquagda sEak sEak 3
ngw_ﬂun.- i ] ETii7 sadusaidag simsmsnAlpy oap 20 (ueadogp) e amy 000 aquwdag  simsunsnlpy _“-_L.__n_“.__q___...wﬂ__ 2z
3NIA 400G 1IN 0 iy PLICIE Joadeg FaqaIg 1) 1% 8y g 1 By FLEE T Jwopppy A0 10 Y
NOILYIDHA¥AHA L§03

(34




=
d
w
i)
-
=
(s 4
M bO8'C1S" TL'00E'%E LEORLLHE  cL0ter'e T0'eeT'BLe
] e 3 W fareg pryp o1 panasuIL 4R LEINIYS 75668 198°96¢ £07'98¢ oy pnzng
7] e[ J5Y I darsg pryL o1 pugsuL 4491y 000808 756’68 198°96¢ £07'88 ¢ oy pnzng
< e[ 31 Ty g payT o pansaseal  SE'SRY 00068 £r'68 097666 £0L'98¢ oy pnzng
N_ P 3y g oy o1 panapseal - COEECH 000088 $69'96 0L5'88¢ Sy oy pnzng
= pawy paasiN fsng AL OF pRSUL 1671056 000'566 6L’y 156714 074681 P SpUoy
= pasE UFIY fareg pryp o1 panajsuaL  G9STRLTS 0000888 I¥'66 PI9LERT SHOLIET opeig maio]
< SOWEE PRV IO ng pryLolpanysunl - L95'91971 LREPI9TI g19°cs S0T994T1 watsig sejog
=3 ORGPV 4T0 g prpoipanasunl - E00°LSE Y1 FO0LEE I 20T ST0SEY ] swats g 3¥[0g o],
. 1 I L.. . - = .ﬁ..r i i _._._. g __.. i i ;
(=] SIOIG PRV dT0 g P 01 paajsura] SROELG 601 GROCLGBOT  BLIRBET ETeE T e ssadi 3
= SRS ERUAII 4T0  Amg prgLoipaasul - SIEILI0I SIEILIOIT  PROREOTE  OO0'DER'TEE SUAREEE CEVRR
—..nln ................................ saadny - - - - N
=
spaanoad ates uoperaadap o
Faing 3y Jo sBOPIG esodsip Jo 3pojy (ssop)/ure) 3907 sponeg O
sa[eg yO0QN  parundy I
o
wawdgmba pue yuvid fasadosd o esodsiqy 77791 M_
=
=
Z
<




18.2

18.2.1

19

1.1

3.2
33
234

s

.6

- ‘ ANNUAL REPORT 2024

I\ |

TANDLIANWALA SUGAR MILLS LTD.

2024 2023
Capital work-in-progress Rupees Rupees
Oxped
Cvil works 58212073 SOL605,822
Plant and machinery 3,106,740 3,106,740
Orthers 1,782,984 1,782,984
63,000,797 55,495,546
Throughour the year, there is only movement of Bs 7.60 million (2023 Nil) in the Capital Work in Propress (CWTP) account.
Mate
Long term deposits Rupees Bupees
Dieposits apainst leased assets 241 463,059 257,719,259
Orthers 141 101,739,883 31,689 883
343,202,922 289,409,122
‘These mainly comprise of security margins of K 913 million (2023: Rs. 21.2 million) deposited apainst bong term financing facilities.
2024 2023
Stores, sparc parts and loose tools Rupees Rupecs
Stores and spare parts 2037 806,550 1,681,364,887
il and lubricants A0 453,637 54,007 559
2,078,260,187 1,735, 372,446
2024 2023
Stock-in-trade Rupees Rupecs
Raw matenials 2,546, 100,000 1,940, 460,778
Finished goods 10,570,954, 810 3,190,942 031
13,117,054,810 5,131,402,809
Trade debts - considered good

These include amount due from Lotte Akhtar Beverapes (Pvt) Limited, an associated company, apainst the sale of Top (jas amounting
to Re 124 million (2023: Rz 0.7 million) in the normal course of business. Maxmum apgrepate outsianding balance at any tme

during the year amounts to Rs. 5,100,086 (2023 R 11,336,278).

Note 2024 2023
Advances to supar cane growers - snacired, anidered pood 1,748,564, 350 1873675279
Advances o suppliers and contractors - smeoered, anidered good 211 T013, 368,652 3n2zmo
Advances to seaff - swrosred, comnidered pood
- against cxpenses 10,907 364 8,710,241
- against salaries 212 4977706 2925576
Advances against letter of credit 213 37,971,245 36,086,598
Pre-payments 3,804,912 27.833,082
Inkand export subsidy 234 133,187,750 133,187,750
Tixport support on sugar 215 586,491,010 586,491,010
Dreposits with the Deputy Registrar (Judicial), Lahore High Court 291 230,809 291,220,809
Orther recervables 238 FT0A475,679 300,740,767
10,228,969,4597 6,873,082,982
‘This represents unsecured interest free advances to contractors and supphiers for normal repair and maintenance.

This includes amount recervable from executives of the Company, amounong o Rs. 232 milbon (2023: Rs. 088 millon) respectively.
This includes advances against letter of credit amounting o Rs. 37.97 million.

This represents inland export subsidy provided to exporters of segar in the year 2003 and 2014 at the rate of R= 1.75 and Rs. 100 per
kg of supar exported through SRO 72/ 200 2-E-11 (Vol-1V) dated September 30, 2013,

‘This represents export support on sugar provided to exporters dunng the financial year 2007-18 with inland freight support amounting
to Rs. 553 million at Rs. 10.7 per kg pursuant to Letter No. T Noo 7(2)/2002-Fap Il issued by the Ministry of Commerce under
directinns of Government of Pakasean dated October 03, 2017,

‘This included interest free lnan receteable from Supenor Textle Mills Limited, an associated company, amoantng to Be 1012 mllion.
‘This amount has heen recovered during the year.
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Nate - e
24 Cash and bank balances Rupces Rupces
Cash in hand 2182787 2,484,362
Cash at bank - e cerremcy
- [HITEN SCOALT 126,512,807 108,136,947
- StNY TR 4.1 130,187,764 899,371,548
256,693,571 1,007,508,495
258,876,358 1,009,992,857
.1 The halances in saving acoounts carry mark-up ranging from 20% to 21% per annem (X23: 18% to 22.5% per annum).
2024 2023
Mate
25  Sales - met Rupees Rupees
1 el
Sugar 28,874,456,1 55 31,674,780,
[ithanal 281,367 461 229,50M,
Top Gas & others M1 448,509,152 376,742 HB5
29,604,332,798 32,281,027,839
Foxgport:
Sugar 252 055,827, 524 1,545,033, 200
Fithanol 12,255,259,965) 13,273,074, 257
13,211,367 489 14,818,107,547
42,815,720,287 47,099,135,386
Lz
Sales tax (4504,143,999) (4,809,047,873)
38,311,576,293 42,290,087,513

251 These inchsde sale to Lotte Akhtar Beverages (Pve) Limited, an associated company, of Top Ceas amounting to Bs. 34.1 milbion (2023 Rs. 43.5

252 Dwring the year sugar was exported as per the quota allocated by SBR

Mots e e
26 Cost of sales Rupees Rupees
Raw matertal consumed 37039 373,867 30,514,681 442
Salaries, wages and ather henefits 261 066,844,136 018,147,529
Diepreciation i8is 755,963,623 T70.347 388
Stores and spare parts consumed B36, 902 2 846,808, 900
Fuel and power 214 512,000 240524, 168
Repair and maintenance 221 210,856 343,355,155
Vehicle running expenses 44 444 5T6 45956673
Insurance 63,806,374 71,146,433
ljerah rentals - 4,198,215
Cither expenses 25958 641 33,964 309
40,169,106,386 33,789,330,212
Add: (hpemimg siock
- Paw material 1,940,460, 778 2260439 821
- Finished goods 3,190,942 031 5,608,946 0012
45,300,509,195 41,748,716,935
1w lanimg stock
- Raw material 21 (2,546, 100,000 (1,940.460,77E)
- Finished poods 2 (10,570,954, 8100 (3,190,942, 031)
32,183,454,385 36,617,314,126

2.1 Salanes, wapes and other benefits inchede Re 130062 mallion (202% Rs. 102.83 million) in respect of staff retirement benefits.
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71 Administrative ¢ Mae

Salarcs, wages and other benefis 271
Rent, rates snd txes

1Deprociation 1811
Linlies expenses

Insuranoe

Postage, telephone and teleprams

Repair and maintenance

Travelling and conveyance

Legal and professional charpes

Aunditor"s remuneration 272
Entenanment

Other expenscs

27.2 Auditor's remuncration
Audit fee
Half yearly revicw
Certifications
(thers

28 Distributi Mate
Handling and distribution
Transportation
(hers 28.1

M

29 Other income i

Income nancial assels

Prodfit on saving accouwnis

Ciain on disposal of property, plant and cquipment 18.1.2

Forcign exchange gain

Write-off of credivors’ balances 201

Miscellaneous income

Amoritaanon of deferred moome 17

291 This represents bong outstanding creditors” balanees written off during the year.

30 Finance cost
Mark-ap based bans from convemtional banbs
- Long term finances - saored
- Shodt term borfowings - saored
- Mark-up on lease lability

ok i
- Lo term finamnces - wired

Bank charpes
(ther charges

e —

TANDLIANWALA SUGAR MILLS LTD.

271 Salanes, wages and ather benefits include Bs. 5868 million (2023: Rs. 46.2 mallion) in respect of staff retirement bencfits

281 This inclades salanies paid to Hacise Department staff present at the Company'’s premises o monitor the distributon of Ethanol.

2024 2023
Rupoeca Rupces
441 500,218 435 574,115
7,737 B 462,741
3247545 19,752,497
3,405,588 4,084,734
16,081,632 17,013,975
40062,731 463,909
10,757,241 10,571,082
6,304,227 7 AGE 3T
12575777 136,300,100
T HE2 438 0 %03, 136
10,123,592 10.976,973
16,662,100 14,652,184
19,123,167 21,597,448
H3, 870,077 I 57,60
TT2,163,607 734,008,233
2024 2025
Rupces Rupccs
5, 28900, 00 4 800,000
1,557,500 1,395,200
75,000 755,000
MG, 500 7701 H54
16,66:2, D00 14,652, 084
24 2023
Rupees Rupces
143,857 658 193,298,756
2041504 112 235 H5E,017
42,185,310 46,962,416
6,598,610 9,145,337
394,536,390 485,264,526
2024 2023
Rupecs Rupees
118,200 400 33,305 263
: 8,513,504
13,541,497 244,080,221
533,938,733 -
150,372 T 4T
: H2 248
066,230,011 ZHT,041,015
2024 2023
Rupoeca Rupces
45,330 365 184 416,039
3 490,271 126 2,299 A5F 82
64,379,524 29 K13,426
3,599,991,015 2,442,685,147
189,219 275,336
189,219 2,875,336
4,108,985 5,615,262
34128,077 7320 1141
7,137,062 12,944,343

— 3607317296 _ 2458504826
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TANDLIANWALA SUGAR MILLS LTD.

Mt - i
1 Other expenses Rupees Rupees
Donations i) - 15,836,505
Workers' Profit Participation Fund 4.2 101,015,731 113,110,116
Workers' Welfare Fund 143 8,280,212 -
189,295,943 128,946,521

311 Durng the last year, the Company has paid donation o Institute For Policy Reforms situated 2t 4 - Shami Road Lahore Canit, Pakistan in
which Mr. Akbar Khan is a Director. Mone of other Directors of the Company or their spouses have any imterest in, or are othensise

Nate - i
32 Taxation Rupees Rupees

Income tax
- Crrent i22e-323 761,155,637 THILETE 460
- Prior period = (144688.374)

61,155,637 646,288,086
Deferned tax oy (12 R02.462) (6,414 807)
Tax expense including levy T48,353,175 639,873,279
Levy - -
Tax expense exchuding levy 748,353,175 639,873,279

321 Tax Charge Reconciliztion
A numerical reconciliation betoeen tax expense and the prodect of accounting profit multipled by tax rate.

2024
Rupees Rupees
Accounting Profit 1,831,018,683 2,149,090,29
Tam at the applicable rate of 2% plos super e (2025 29%) 631,701,446 741,436,152
Tax for the prior year - (144,688,374)
Tax effect of change in super tax 1K, 347 fififs B53,727
Inadmissible expense 331,473,537 4502 586
Fxempt income - [238,452)
ihers (220,367,012) 332447
Tax Expense 761,155,637 646,288,086

322 During the year minimom tax is adjusted against the normal tax lahility caleolated at the mte of 29% as normal @x lability is greater than

323 Certsin other tax cases not involving materisl amounts are pending apainst the Company apainst which the Company expects favorable
outcomes and, hence, have not been provided for in these aocounts.

33  Eamings per share - basic and dilured

2024 023
Profit after taxation Rgpees 1,062, 665,508 1.500,217,017
Weighted average number of ordinary shares Namber of shares 117,706, 34K 117,706,300

Basic earnings per share Rupees 9.20 1282
333 There is no dilution effect on the basic earmings per share 35 the Company does not have any convertible instruments in issoe as at 30

Nase 2024 023

¥ Cash and cash equivalents Rupees Rupees

Cash and bank halances 24 258 B76,358 1,008,992 857
Short term borrowings - Running finance 12 (99,502,155) (99,502,155)
159,374,203 910,490,702
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35 Financial risk management
The Company is exposed to the following nsks from its use of {inancial instruments:

1 Credit risk

2 Liguidity risk

3 Marker rsk
This presents information ahout the Companys exposure to each of the above nsks, the Company’s objectives, policies and processes for
measuring and managing nisk, and the Companys manapement of capital

351 Risk management framework
The Board of Directors have overall responsibility for establishment and over-sight of the Company’s sk manapement fraimesonr. The
exerutive management team s responsible for developing and monitoring the Company’s sk manapement polices. The team regulardy
meets and any changes and compliance issues are reported o the Boand of Directors through the Audit Commirtee.
The Company’s risk management policies are established to idennfy and analyze the nsks faced by the Company, to set appropriate nsk
limits and controls, and to monitor rsks and sdherence o mits. Risk manzpement policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect
changes in market conditons and the Company's activiges The Company, throwgh its training and manapement standands and
procedures, aims to develop a discplined and constructive control environment in which all employees understand their roles and
obligations.
The Company’s Audit Committer oversees how manapement monitors compliance with the Company’s nsk manapement polices and
procedures and reviews the adequacy of the nsk management framework in relation to the nsks faced by the Company. Auodit Committee
is assisted i its oversight role by internal audit department. Internal audit department undertakes both repular and ad-hoc reviews of nsk
management controls and procedures, the results of which are reported o the Audit Committee.
352 Credit risk

Credit nsk 15 the risk of financial loss to the Company if 2 customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contraciual
oblipations. To manape credie sk the Company maintains procedures covering the application for credit approvals, pranting and reneoal
of counterparty limits and monitonng of exposures against these hmits As part of these processes the financial vishility of all

to credit risk
The carrying amount of financial assets represents the masdmum credit exposure before any credit enhancements. “The maximum exposare
0 credit risk at the reporting date i
2024 20023
Rupees Ruopees
Long term deposits 101,739 883 31,689,883
“Trade dehis - comnidered good 14,513,451 3545118
Advances, deposits and other receivables 1,419, 346,493 1,347 726,954
Bank balances 56,693,571 1,007 508 495
1,792,293,398 2,¥90,738,430
Trade debts
‘Trade dehis at the balance sheet date are classified in Pak Rupees.
2024 20023
Rupees Rupees
Export - secwred - -
Local - snrecsred, considered pood 14,513,451 3,843,118
14,513,451 3,843,118
The aging of local trade receivahbles at the reporting date is:
Related Partics Orthers Total
2024 2024 2024
1 0 30 days 11,638388 1,418,333 13,056,721
31 to 90 days TGHT 898 H8E A2 1,456,730
12, 406,286 2,107,165 14,513,451
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TANDLIANWALA SUGAR MILLS LTD.

Related Parties Others Total
2023 2023 2023
Rupees Rupees Rupees
1 to 30 days T08,177 1,657,357 236553
31 to %) days - 1,477,584 1ATT 584
108,177 3,134,941 3,843,118

Trade debts comprise solely of local customers, including Lotte Akhtar Beverages (Pvt) Limited, an associated company. These include
companies with very good credit history with the Company and are regular in their payments. The management continuously monitors the
repayment capacity and intention of their debtors and extends the credit periods to their customers according to their credit history.
Furthermore, the Company has recovered major portion of its trade debts subsequent to the year. Resultantly, oo impairment allowance
was recorded.

Bank balances

Credit risk is considered minimal since the counterparties have reasonably high credit ratings as determined by various credit rating
agencies. Due to long standing business relationships with these counterparties and considering their strong fimndal standing,
management does not expect non-peformance by these counterparties on their obligations o the Company. Following are the credit

ratings of counterparties with external credit ratings:
Rating Rating 204 2023
Shortterm _ Long term Agency Rupees Rupees

Al Baraka Bank Al At PACRA 535,058 535,057
Allied Bank Limited Al AAA PACRA 4703247 229,666,443
Askari Bank Limited Al+ A PACRA 1471 582 T48519
Bank Alfalah Limited Al AA PACRA 73121 939,12
Dubai Istamic Bank Al AA JCR-VIS 726,770 42062
Faysal Bank Limited Al AA PACRA 367,205 2237937
Habib Bank Limited Al AAA JCRVIS 781,666 8,480,848
MCB Bank Limited At AAA PACRA 26,443,380 71,757,052
Metzan Bank Limited Al AAA JCRVIS 1092046 22572513
National Bank of Pakistan Al AAA JCRVIS 1984513 3,446,128
Samba Bank Limited Al AA JCRVIS 893,090 1.841.786
Sindh Bank Limited A At JCRVIS 35,795,028 35,171,023
Soneti Bank Limited At AA PACRA 1,792,683 2037473
Summit Bank Limited Suspended JCR-VIS 80 80
"The Bank OF Khyber Al A+ JCRVIS 19,395 1,303,979
"The Bank of Punjab Alt AAH PACRA 3443567 7,510,774
United Bank Limited At AAA JCRVIS 156,167,182 618,617,709
U-Microfinance Bank Al At JURVIS 1,299.958

256,693,571 1,007,508 495

ANNUAL REPORT 2024 Y| ﬂ"




I\ |

TANDLIANWALA SUGAR MILLS LTD.

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Comparry will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due. The Company’s approach to managing
licquidity is tor ensure, as far as possible, that it will abways have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed
conditions. For this purpose, the Company has sufficient running finance facilities available from vaious commencial banks to mee its liquidity
requiremnents. Further, liquidity position of the Company is closely monitored through budgets, cash fow projections and comparison with actual
results by the Board.

; baxidityris

Following are the contractual maturities of the financial Eabilites, including estimated interest payments:

Carrying Amount Contractual cash Lesz than one One to five years Maore than five

flows year years
September 30, 2024
Loy termn finances - sared - - . - -
Lease liahlites 435,TR2 614 481,727 182 146,486,078 335,241 004 2
Shoet term boeruwings-seured IR4G0813174 18469813174 18460813174 - -
"Tracle and other payables 3,304,193,135 3,304,193,135 3,304,193,135 , -
Mark-up accrued 23,224 826 823,204 B2 B23,04 B2 - -
BOBHBTY  BIT8IE2AT RIS 335,241,004 -
Carrying Amount  Contractal cash  Less than one One to five More than five
flows year years years
September 30, 2023
Long term finances - sered 571,654,543 602,237 M5 602,237 45 : :
Lease liabilities 503,675,841 618,372,912 251,504,232 36,868,680 -
Short term borruwings-sered 8,433,218 407 8433 218 407 8,433 218 407 5 2
"Tradle and other payables 2219573413 2279573413 2279573413 : .
Mark-up acerued 359,291,779 350,291,779 359,291,779 = :

2147413,983  12,291,693,556 11,925,824,876 366,868,680 -

The contractual cash flows relating to the shove financial abilities have been determined on the basis of mark-up rates effective as at Seprember
30, 2024. "The rates of mark-up have been disclosed in relevant notes to these financial statements

354 Market risk
Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such s foreipn exchange rates, interest rates and equity prices will affect the Company's
income of the value of its holdings of fimancial instruments. The objective of market risk management & 1o manage and control market risk
exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimixding return. Market risk comprises of currency tisk, interest rate risk and other price risk.
35.4.1 Foreign currency risk
The Company is exposed to currency risk to the extent that there is 2 mismatch between the currencies in which sales, purchases and hank
balances are denominated and the respective functional currency of the Company. The functional currency of the Company is Pak Rupee.
“The currency in which these transactions are primarily denominated is TS Daolkars,
Exposure o currency risk
Thete were no financial assets or financial abilities at year end in fordgn currencies which are subject to currency risk exposure,
Currency risk management
Since the maximum smount exposed to currency tisk is Nil (2023 Nil), any adverse | favorable movement in the functional currency with
respect to U5 dollar will not have any matertal impact on the operational resulis.

- ‘ ANNUAL REPORT 2024
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35.4.2 Interest rate risk

Interest tate risk is the fisk that the fair values ot future cash flows of finandal instruments will Auctuate due to changes in market
interest rates. Significant interest tate risk exposures are primarily managed by a mix of borrowings at variable interest rates. At the
reporting date the interest rate profile of the Company's significant interest bearing financial instruments was as follows:

2024 2023 2024 2023
----- Percentage --- - - -------- Rupees-------
- Financial assets
Fixed rate instruments
Bank balinces - sanmy ety 2% to 21% 185 to 22.5% 15,180,764 B899 371 548
2024 2023 2024 2023
Effective rate Carrying amount
- Financial liabilites @~ = ----- Percentage -----  c----e-s Rupees-------
Floating rate instrument
Lony term fimances - soured S00% - 2567 50056 - 25.70% - 571,054,543
Lease liahility 22 43%; - 28 49%: 21370 - 28.49% 435782514 03,675,841
Short term borrowings - reored 22 79, - 25 86% 18.51% - 27.91% 11754915174 2125718 407
Fixed rate instruments
: ; - 100 Pa-10%
Baportaciuincs nchity - et 14.5% - 19% 1054%-19.01% GHANDN0 630730000
Fair value sensitivity analysis for fixed rate instruments

The Company does not account for any foed rate financial assets and liahilities ot fair value through profit or Ioss. Therefore, a change
in interest rates at the reporting date would not affect profit or loss account.
Cash o ; PO

A change of 100 hasis points in interest rates at the reporting date would have increased [ (decressed) profit or boss for the year by the
amounts shown below: This analysis assumes that all other vartables, in particular foreign currency rates, remain constant.

2024 2023
Rupees Rupees
Effect on profit - Increase 121,906,958 32,0488
Effect on profit - Decrease (121,906,958) (32,010,488)
The sensitivity analysis prepared is not necessarily indicative of the effects on profit [ (loss) for the year and assets [ labilities of the
Comypany.
Interest rate risk management

The Company manages interest rate tisk through risk management strategies where significant changes in gap position can be adjusted.
The short term bormowings and loans 8 advances to the Company have variable rate pricing that is mostly dependent on KIBOR as
indicated in respective notes.

Other price risk

Other price risk is the tisk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will Auctuate because of changes in market
prices (nther than those arising from interest rate risk or currency isk). The Company believes that it is not exposed to other price risk.

35.43

I R |
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36 Capital management
T]:.eerd’spnliqismmahmjnanef&timtmpjullnsemﬂsmmﬂnminimesm,uuﬁuwmdnmtﬂumfdmmdmgmmhdw
future development of its business The Board of Directors monitor the return on capital employed, which the Company defines as
operating income divided by total capital employed. The Board of Directors also monitor the level of dividends 1 ordinary shareholders.
The Company’s objectives when managing capital are:

)  tosafeguard the Company's ability to continue a5 2 poing concern, so that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders and
benefits for other stakeholders, and

(i) o provide an adequate return to shareholders.

The Company manages its capital structure in the context of economic conditions and the risk characteristics of the underying assets. In

order 1o maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may, for example, adjust the amount of dividends paid 1o shareholders, issue

new shares, or sell assets to reduce debt. The Company monitors capital on the basis of the debt-to-equity ratio - caleulated as 3 ratio of

long term debt to equity.

The debt-to-equity ratios as at 3™ September are as follows:

2024 2023
Ruopees Ropees
Debt 435 TR2 614 1,075,330,384
Equity 1B3N2146117 12598 136,652
Total 447928731 13,673,467,036
Gearing ratio P B
The Company is less geared as compared to last year.
36.1 Accounting classification and fair values
September 30, 2024 Carrying amount Fair value
Fair value
Fair value At Amortized

thrmg;m Profit or oCl st Total Level 1 Level2 Level3
Financial assets
Long term deposits - - 101,739 883 101,739,883 - -
Trade delus - comsidered good 2 5 14 513,451 14,513,451 = e
Advances, deposils, prepayments - - 1419546495 1,419,346,493 - -
an aither recervables
(Cash and bank halances : g 258 876,358 258,876,358 = -

= = 1,74,476,185  1,794,476,185 -

Financial liabilities
Long term finances - secwred : = . - - _
Lease liahilities - - 435782614 435,782,614 - -
Short term borrowings - rered : = 18460813,174  18,469,813,174 = e
Trade and other pa-_mblex - - 3304193135 3,304,193,135 - -
Mark-up acerued :: = 823,224 B26 823,224 826 = e

- BWBGH) BB -
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Scptembeer 30, 2023 Carrying amount FEair valoc
Fair value
ﬂlrnughlmi"mﬁtur el o Total Levell Lewel2 Lewel 3

Financial asscis
Long term depaosits 31,680 BH3 31,689,583
Trade debts - anvidered good 38435118 3.843.118
Advances, deposits, prepaymenis 1,066, 86, 16T 1,046,986, 167
& other receivables
Cash & bank balances 1009992 857 1009992857

- - 2,092,512,025  2,092,512,025 - - -
Financial liabilitics
Long term finances - secared 571,654,543 571,654,543
Lcasc liabilitics 503,675,541 503,675,841
Short werm borrowings - seored HASZZIRA07  B433,218.407
Trade and other payables 2ITRATEALS 2,27T9,575.413
Mark-up accrucd 359291779 359,291,779

- - 12,147 413,983 12,147 413,983 - - -

indirectly {i.c. derived from prices).

ANNUAL REPORT 2024

Level 1 - Quoted prices {unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or labiliges.
Level 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices incleded within level 1 that are observable for the asset or lability, either directly (e as prices) or

Lewel 3 - Inpuis for the assct or liability that are not based on obscrvable market data.

The above table presents asseis and liabilities carried at fair valoe by valuaton method. The different levels have been defined as follows:
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37.8 Reconcihations of reportable segment revenues, profit or loss, assets and Babilities

TANDLIANWALA SUGAR MILLS LTD.

2024 2023
Rupees Rupees

37.81 Revenues

Total revenue for reportable sepments IBI1,576,293 42 290 087 513

Ebmination of inter-sepment revenoe - .

Consolidated revense 38,311,576,293 42 700,087,513
37.8.2 Profit or loss before tax and other expenses

Total profit for reportable scgments 1,354,084,615 1,990,995, 802

Un-allocated corporate expenses

- (hther excpenses (189,295,947 (128,946,521)

- Chiber imcore 66, 230,011 ZRT.041,05

- Tancation (748,3533,1759) (639,873,279)

Conzolidated profit after tax 1,082 665,508 1,509.217.017
37.8.3 Assers

“Total assets for reportable sepments 41,558,688 391 30807 275,254

Limination of inter-scgment assets - -

Consolidated assets 41,558,688,391 30,807 275,254
37.8.4 Liabiliti

Total habilities for reportable sepments 2T 846,542,274 18,209, 138,602

Fliminaticn of inter-segment hahalities - -

Consolidated habilities 27.846,542.274 18,209,138,602
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TANDLIANWALA SUGAR MILLS LTD.

3 Capacity and production 2024

Sugar plant Unit I Unit IT Unit ITT Total

Crushing capacity (Metric tons) 1,562,500 2,000,000 2,500,000 6,062,500

hased on 125 days - (Season 2023-2024)

Sugar produced (Metric mns) §9,293 147,608 95487 332,388

Recowery ratin 85% 9.2 9.52% 9.10%

2023

Sugar plant Unit I Unit IT Unit ITT Total

Crushing capacity (Metric tons) 1,562,500 2,000,000 2,500,000 6,062,500

hased on 125 days - (Season 20022-2023)

Supar produced (Metric tons) 90,299 130,516 112848 333,663

Recowery ratin 1.16% 8.43% 973 B.64%
2024 2023

Ethanol - Disti i Bascd on 330 days

Rated capacity (Litres) 41,250,000 41,250,000

Actual production {Litres) 30,006,679 S0ETO,000

Ethanol - Disti i

Rated capacity (Litres) 46,200,004 46,200,000

Actual prodscton (Litres) 40,209,713 44,481,538
2024 2023

Yo Gas - Carban digvide plant Based on 300 days

Rated capacity (Metric tons) 14,400 14,400

Actual production (Metric tons) 4370 5,308

38.1 Reduced capacity unbzation is due to the less avalabibty of sugarcane at the start and end of crushing season, which resulted in the
aperations of the company below the crushing capaoiy

3 Remuneration of Chicf Exccutive, Dircctors and Exccutives
‘The apprepate amownts charged in the financial statements for the year for remuneranon, incdoding all benefis  the Chief xecatve,
Directors and Uixecutves of the Company are as follows:

2024
Rupees
Manageral remuneration - 24 RN () 88,284 3096
Medical allowance - 2480 (00 5,447 840
House rent allowance - 9,520 () 3925 445
Staff retirement benefits - 3,100,000 3,791 417
= 40,300,000 m,_m,im
Mumber of persons 1 2 42
2023
Chicf Executive Directors Executives
Bupees
Managerial remuneration - 24 800, () 76,176,959
Medical allowance - 2480 (00 6,490,356
House rent allowance - 0,020, (M) 23479 832
Staff retirement benefits - 3, 100,000 8,351,051
- 40,300,000 114,498,188
Mumber of persons 1 2 42

391 The Chief Fxecutve Officer, Direcinrs and Fxecotives are provided with free use of Company mamntained cars.
39.2 Mo meeting fer was paid to Directors during the year (2023: Nil).
393 Timecotives are employees whose hasic salanes exceed Re 1.2 million in a inancial year.
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TANDLIANWALA SUGAR MILLS LTD.

40 Mumber of employees 2024 2023
MNumber MNumiber

The average and wotal number of cmplovees are a8 follows:
Total cmployecs
Aswerage number of emplovees dufing the year 1,714 1,745
Towal number of employees as ar 30 Seprember 1,652 1,775
Factory cmployocs
Average number of emplovees dusing the year LG18 1,687
Towal number of employees as ar 30 Seprember 1,559 1,677

41 Transactions with related partics
The related partics comprise discciors of te Company, key employees, associated endertakings and holding companyg. Details of
rransacions with relaved parties, other than those which have been specifically disclosed dsewhere in these financial seements are as

frallonars:
2024 2023
Mame of pariy Relationship Maiure of Transactions
Rupces Rupees

Lote Akhor Beverages Comdnion Jale of Top Gas 34 100,961 434,117
(PeL) Limited disecorship Reccipts against sale of Top Gas 22 MIZH53 47,139,110
The Instinute for Palicy Comimon i
Reforms directorship Danation = 15,836,505
Superior Texile Mills Comrnon Advances provided - T, 2568, (W)
Limited dircerorship Advanees received y 5 M0, CHKD

Interest reccived 47 350,537 -

Loan recovered TUM ZE8, (0
Mz Rasheoda Begum Direcror Ciucst house rent cxpense R LULLE 4 S0

42  Ewcms aficr the stawement of financial position dae
Thete are no subsequent cvents occurring after the satement of financial positon dae thar will affect these financial sErements.
43 Daiwe of awthorization for issuc
These financizl statements were anthorized for issee on by the Board of Directors of the Company.
44  General
44.1 Figures have been rounded off 1w the nearest Rupec.

#4.2  Corresponding fipures have been re-arranged and descriptions amended, wherever necessary for the purpose of eomparison and beoer

PrCsCIiAL.

Dieacription Reclassifed from Mot Reclassificd w Mot Amount {Kopecs)

Re-classificarion of Awditor's
Wnﬂ from Legal and  Legal 8 professional o H.ur].imn’.& pe 5,456,584
professional  charges  w charges PETILNCEALn

Auelitnt's femuneration

Chiefl Financial Officer Chiel Executive
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Proxy Form
Tandlianwala Sugar Mills Ltd.

36" Annual General Meeting

Folio No.fCDC Afc No.

I/We of

in the district of being a member/members of Tandlianwala Sugar Mills Ltd
holding shares of Rs.10 each, hereby appoint Mr./Ms.

of a member of the Company, vide Registered Folio/CDC Afc
No. or failing him / her, as my/our proxy to vote

for mefus and on myfour behalf at the 36" Annual General Meeting of the Company to be hold at Marina

Event Complex 333-AA off Raiwind Road, Lahore on Saturday lanuary 25, 2025 at 10:00 am and at any adjournment

thereof or of any ballot to be taken in consequence thereof,

Signed this day of lanuary, 2025
Witnesses:
1. Signature:

Name:

CNIC:

Address:

Affix Revenue
Stamp of Rupees
Five
Signature by Member(s)

2 Signature:

Name:

CNIC:

Address:
Mote:

All proxies, in order to be effective, must be received at the Company’s Registered Office not less than forty eight
{48) hours before the time fixed for holding the Annual General Meeting and must be duly stamped, signed and
witnessed as required.
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